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ORBITAL AT A GLANCE

ABOUT ORBITAL

Orbital Sciences Corporation develops, manufactures and operates advanced small
launch vehicles, sateliites and other space-related systems, providing our customers
with innovative, high-reliability products at affordable prices. During our 23-year
history, the company has designed, built and delivered over 480 rockets and
spacecraft that have been used in missile defense programs, military space systems,
Earth and space science missions, and commercial communications and imaging
applications. Headquartered in Dulles, Virginia outside of Washington, D.C., Orbital
employs approximately 2,500 people at five locations in four states.

MAJOR PRODUCTS

LAUNCH VEHICLES

Space Launch Vehicles

Small-class rockets that deliver satellites into low-Earth orbit and into certain higher-
energy orbits, as well as advanced launch systems for R&D missions and other

special-purpose applications

Interceptor Launch Vehicles

Missile defense rockets that boost “kill vehicles” to intercept hostile ballistic missiles
launched against the United States or our troops and allies overseas

Target Launch Vehicles

Suborbital rockets and related systems used to develop and test missile defense
systems and to serve as platforms for military and scientific research

SATELLITES AND RELATED SPACE SYSTEMS

Communications Satellites

Smaller geosynchronous-orbit satellites that provide broadcast, cable and direct-
to-home television, business data networks, regional mobile telephony and other

space-based communications services

Science, Technology and Defense Satellites

Small- and medium-class spacecraft that are used to conduct space-related scientific
research, to carry out interplanetary and other deep-space exploration missions, to
demonstrate new space technologies, and to collect imagery and other remotely-
sensed data about the Earth for commercial, scientific and national security uses

Space Technical Services

Quick-response space-related engineering and manufacturing services for scientific

and military space programs

TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS
Software-based systems that combine satellite navigation and wireless
communications to enable municipal transit and other fleet operators to better

manage and dispatch vehicles
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Years Ended December 31,
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David W.Thompson (center), Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

James R Thompson (left), Vice Chairman, President and
Chief Operating Officer

Garrett E. Pierce (right), Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer

Left:  One of Orbital's Ground-based Midcourse Defense
interceptor vehicles is lowered into a silo at Ft. Greely, Alaska.
In 2004, Orbital delivered eight interceptors for emplacement in
silos at Ft. Greely and Vandenberg Air Force Base, California, and !
an additional two interceptors to be used for flight tests in 2005.
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2004: A BUSY YEAR

The company carried out |4
challenging space missions
with 100% success last year,
and delivered 20 additional
satellites for

These

rockets and
future  launches.
operations brought our
record to 38 consecutive
successful missions over the

last three years.

Nearly 50

Orbital-built
satellites currently in orbit,
such as our BSAT-2a communi-
cations spacecraft deployed in
2001, continued to operate

with high reliability last year.

TO OUR FELLOW STOCKHOLDERS:

Orbital had a very good year in 2004. The company’s operational performance was generally
solid, our new business activity was robust, and cur financial results exceeded targets in
every major category. Last year fell a little short of being a truly great one for the company,
though, as our stock price failed to sustain early-year gains, several operational shortcomings
delayed high-visibility space and missile programs, and a few product lines experienced weak
new order rates. In this report, we highlight Orbital's major achievements, as well as a few
setbacks, during the past year. We also ook ahead to what we believe will be the company’s

most significant opportunities and challenges in 2005.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE AND PLANS

The company carried out |1 space missions with 100% success last year. In addition, we
delivered 12 rockets and 8 satellites for future launches. Notable operational accomplishments
included two successful flights of our Pegasus-derived Hyper-X launch vehicle, which helped
NASA establish new world speed records for airbreathing vehicles (first to Mach 7 in March,
then to almost Mach 10 in November), as well as three consecutive successes in tests of

our ramjet-propelled "Coyote" supersonic sea-skimming target for the U.S. Navy. These
operations brought our recent record to 38 consecutive successful missions over the last three
years. Over a longer period, they increased our record to 24 successes out of 126 attempts
during the past eight years, reflecting a 98.4% overall reliability rate and an operational pace

averaging one space mission every three weeks since [997.

In our largest and most important program, Orbital made excellent progress during 2004 in
ramping up production on the Orbital Boost Vehicle (OBV) interceptor rocket for the U.S.
Missile Defense Agency's (MDA) Ground-based Midcourse Defense (GMD) national missile
defense system, We completed and delivered 10 OBV interceptors last year, including the first
eight operational vehicles that were deployed in silos in Alaska and California late last year.
We also carried out a successful OBV flight test in January 2004, although a second planned

test has been delayed by a software problem from December until this spring.

While Orbital delivered over 90% of our rockets and satellites on schedule last vear, we did
experience delays on several programs that disrupted our customers’ plans and reduced our
profitability and cash flow. For instance, delays occurred on our Taurus space taunch vehicle
mission that ultimately took place last May, and on a Pegasus vehicle that was to orbit the

company-built DART autonomous rendezvous spacecraft last October, now rescheduled for

later this spring.

2004 Annual Report 3
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Above: Over a 12-year period from 1997 to 2008, Orbital

expects to build and deliver more than 75 satellites.

These satellites, ovar 50 of which have already been

I launched, will be used by commercial, scientific and defense
customers in the U.S. and abroad, for missions ranging
from communications and broadcasting to Earth and space
science and national defense.

1 Right: Orbital's Hyper-X booster made aviation history not

‘ once, but twice in 2004. In March, the modified Pegasus first

! stage rocket propelled NASA's X-43 scramjet demonstrator
to nearty Mach 7, providing it with the initial conditions
to become the fastest air-breathing vehicle ever flown.

| In November, Hyper-X boosted another X-43 aircraft to

| almost Mach 10, allowing the experimental plane to break
its own speed record.
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BACKLOG GROWTH

Orbital’'s  firm  contract
backlog stood at almost $1.17
billion at the end of 2004,
up 7% in one year and 42%

over the past two years.

. The company's year-end total

backlog, including options and

- undefinitized orders, stood

at  $2.31 billion, covering

about 88% of our projected

revenue in 2005.

As busy as 2004 was, we expect 2005 to be even faster-paced and more productive: the
company's current plans call for us to conduct up to |l satellite deployments and about 20
rocket launches, plus another 17 or 18 launch vehicle and space system deliveries in the year
ahead. We must continue to place our highest priority on product safety and reliability in
conducting these operations, while also improving our processes in areas such as supply chain

management to eliminate schedule delays and cost increases wherever possible,

NEW BUSINESS ACTIVITY AND OUTLOOK

The company recorded its third consecutive year of more than $1 billion in annual new business
activity in 2004, receiving a total of $1.17 billion in new orders and option exercises under
existing contracts last year. Leading the way were our missile defense interceptors for MDA's
GMD and Kinetic Energy Interceptor (KEl) programs and our science and defense satellites

for NASA and national security customers, which together accounted for around 70% of our
new business totals. As a result of this robust booking rate, Orbital boosted its firm backlog to
approximatety $1.17 billion at year-end 2004, an all-time record and an increase of 17% over
the prior year's figure. Total backlog, which includes unexercised options and undefinitized
contracts, stood at about $2.31 billion at the end of the year, reflecting the value of over 35

space systems and more than |50 rockets that we could build over the next eight years.

In 2004, Orbital maintained or increased its market share in all but one of our six core
product lines (the single exception being small communications satellites, in which we aim
to make up some of last year's lost ground with major new order pursuits during the first
half of 2005). As in the past two vears, our 2004 annual survey of the company’s customers
continued to indicate high levels of satisfaction with our performance, but also identified a
couple of areas where we should implement additional improvements over the next few
years, We are already making good progress in addressing these areas through an aggressive
program focused on adopting best engineering and manufacturing practices across the

company and strengthening supplier technical oversight in ail product lines.

Looking ahead to 2005 and 2006, our general market outlook for the next two vears is a

bit more guarded than it has been in the recent past. Our core technologies and product

lines remain strongly positioned in important segments of the U.S. Government space and
defense market. However, after several years of high-single-digit annual expansion, the growth
rate of overall Federal spending on military and science programs appears to be slowing. For
example, the Pentagon's 2006 budget request for space and missile R&D and production

now before the U.S. Congress is around 4.0% higher than its 2005 level, while NASA's 2006
spending plan calls for only a modest 2.5% increase over its 2005 appropriations. Longer-range
budget forecasts call for a resumption of more robust military spending growth from 2007 to
2010, but the Federal budget deficit and other factors could limit actual increases in relevant

appropriation amounts in future periods.

2004 Annual Report 5



Right: Assembly of Orbital's
Ground-based Midcourse Defense
interceptor vehicle takes place in
the massive Missile  Assembly
Building at Vandenberg Air Force
Base, California. [n 2004, Orbital's
Vandenberg GMD team completed
and shipped approximately one
interceptor a month for this
important missile defense program.

Below: In 2004, Orbital successfully
carried out three test launches
of its ramjet-powered "Coyote"
supersonic sea-skimming target for
the US. Navy, setting the stage
for an initial production run of the
target rocket to begin in 2005.
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Fortunately, our operational performance has been outstanding and, with a few exceptions,
our major programs seem to be well-funded. Therefore, we expect most of the company's
core product lines to continue to exhibit reasonable revenue growth over the next few years,
although probably at a somewhat reduced rate compared to the 18% average annual pace

Orbital achieved over the past three years. For 2005 in particular, we anticipate that our

top-line growth will be driven by defense and commercial satellites and by missile interceptor

rockets, partly offset by weaker sales in science satellites and space launch vehicles.

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENTS AND INITIATIVES

The company won several contracts of strategic significance over the past year that are

now funding the development of new or upgraded launch vehicle and satellite products.

For example, the U.S. Air Force is sponsoring the design, testing and first launches of our
Minotaur-It and -IV heavier-lift rockets, which will allow us to provide launch services to

an expanded class of high-energy space missions. Similarly, NASA and a classified U.S.
Government customer are funding major product upgrades for several of our popular satellite

platforms in support of new applications with excellent growth potential.

To augment growth in our traditional markets, Orbital is also pursuing opportunities in
adjacent segments, such as cruise-missile technologies, deep-space exploration programs and
human space systems. In these and perhaps other areas, we believe that our technological
capabilities are well-suited to emerging customer needs and that our business strategy, which

has been quite effective in other market niches, can be implemented successfully as well.

In addition, we are exploring alliances with other aerospace companies in selected markets
as well as potential small acquisitions that could broaden our position in relatively new areas
for us, like defense and intelligence satellites and tactical missiles. The company’s strong cash
position and liquidity outlook permit us to consider a more aggressive approach to joint
ventures, teaming agreements and strategic acquisitions than has been feasible for the past
four or five years. If appropriate opportunities to enhance our competitive position and
increase shareholder value are identified, we would intend to deploy a portion of Orbital’s

cash to capitalize on their growth potential.

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND TARGETS
In every important category, Orbital's 2004 financial results exceeded both the previous year's

figures as well as our stated objectives for the year:

e Revenue of $676 million was 6% higher than the prior vear's level, and more than $25 million

better than our original target for 2004,

2004 Annual Report 7




Right: In May 2004, the high-performance

"XL" variant of Orbital's Taurus rocket

conducted s maiden flight, successfully

launching the ROCSAT-2 spacecraft into

! orbit for Taiwan's National Space Program
Office (NSPQ).

Below: A significant milestone in the
: FORMOSAT-3/COSMIC satellite program
was achieved in mid-2004 when Orbital
shipped one complete sateflite and
components for five additional satellites to
Taiwan's NSPO. The remaining satellites
will be assembled and tested in Taiwan by
NSPO personnel with the assistance of
' Orbital engineers, then launched aboard an
! Orbital Minotaur | rocket from Vandenberg

Air Force Base, California in late 2005.
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Orbital's newest space launch

vehicle, the Peacekeeper
ICBM-based Minotaur IV, will
conduct its inaugural mission
in 2007, launching the Space-
Based Space Surveillance
system for the U.S. Air Force
under a contract awarded in

late 2004.

¢ Operating income of $55.3 million jumped 56% compared to 2003's results, with an operating

margin of 8.2% that was well above our 7.5% mid-range objective;

* Adjusted net income* before unusual items of $45.6 million more than doubled relative to the
previous year's adjusted net income, resutting in $0.70 adjusted earnings per share* (EPS) that

was above our targeted $0.55-0.65 EPS range; and

® Free cash flow* of $52.7 million increased more than 40% over 2003's value, and was greater

than planned for 2004 as well,

This solid performance contributed to the company's posting of our strongest balance sheet in
the last decade at the end of 2004. For instance, $125 million in unrestricted cash at year-end
2004 was more than twice our cash balance a year earlier, while our net-debt-to-equity ratio
declined from around 45% in late 2003 to less than 1% by the end of last year. This factors in
our use of about $17 million of cash during the year to repurchase Orbital's common stock

and outstanding notes, actions we may continue in 2005 as market conditions warrant.

At the end of 2004, the company’s management reviewed our recent financial results, long-
term financial plan and overall strategic outlook, and concluded that it was appropriate

to substantially reverse the reserve related to our net operating loss (NOL) tax credit
carryforward and other deferred tax assets. As a result, Orbital recorded a one-time, non-
cash benefit of $156 million on our income statement in the fourth quarter. Shareholders'
equity on our balance sheet increased by $172 million and goodwill decreased by $40 million.
Accordingly, the company will now report net income and EPS on a fully-taxed basis in 2005
and beyond, even though our tax NOL carryforward will continue to shield actual cash

earnings from tax payments for many years to come.

Turning to our financial guidance for the year ahead, Orbital is targeting revenue of
approximately $700 to $725 million and operating margins of 8.0% to 8.5% of revenue in
2005. Owing to better-than-expected profit margins on several satellite contracts that we
recently completed, 2004's actual operating margin was also in this range, but our expectation
for the year ahead is consistent with the company’s long-term plan to increase margins by 50 to
75 basis points a year from 2003 to 2008. With lower net interest expense than last year, we
are aiming for 2005 earnings per share of $0.40 to $0.45 (assuming 65 to 67 million fully diluted
shares and an effective tax rate of about 40%). Free cash flow is anticipated to be in the $40 to

$45 million range and firm contract backiog to be $1.15 to $1.20 billion at the end of 2005.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND GOVERNANCE UPDATE
Orbital increased its hiring of new employees during 2004 in order to keep pace with our
revenue growth. We added over 500 excellent new people to our workforce, up about

60% from our hiring level in 2003. After normal attrition, the company ended the year with

* Non-GAAP financial measures are explained on the inside back cover of this Annual Report.
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Left: In 2004, the company continued to design, build
and launch sophisticated target vehicles for missile
defense and related programs. We conducted four
successful target missions fast year and plan up to 10
such launches in 2005,

Below: Orbital's Demonstration of Autonomous
Rendezvous Technology (DART) spacecraft,
developed under a NASA contract, is scheduled
for launch on a Pegasus rocket in 2005,
The 24-hour DART mission will validate advanced
technologies to allow sarellites to rendezvous with
and conduct close-proximity operations near other
in-orbit spacecraft without human guidance.




STRONG FINANCIAL
RESULTS

In every important category,
Orbital's 2004 financial
results exceeded both the
previous year's figures as
well as our stated objectives
for the year. This solid
performance contributed to
the company’s posting of our
strongest balance sheet in
the last decade at the end

of 2004.

\

about 2,425 regular employees and 300 contractors. Our employee revenue productivity also

increased around 5% over the prior year, averaging about $295,000 per person last year.

Your Board of Directors was very active last year in carrying out its responsibilities, ranging
from providing strategic advice and reviewing financial results and policies, to probing market
and competitive changes and conducting performance monitoring and development planning
of management. The Board and its Committees held more than 30 face-to-face and telephonic
meetings in 2004, covering a wide array of topics such as strategic planning, operations
reviews, new technology trends, risk assessments, human resource development and training,
management succession and compensation plans, cash deployment alternatives and internal

financiat controls testing,

Early this year, the Board appointed Dr. Robert Hermann, a Director since 2002 who

was previously Senior Vice President of Science and Technology at United Technotogies
Corporation and. earlier, Director of the U.S. National Reconnaissance Office, to serve as
our Lead Independent Director. Bob takes over from Mr. Dan Fink, who was Orbital's first
Lead Independent Director, serving in that capacity for 2003 and 2004. We thank Dan for his

leadership in this critical role and look forward to working with Bob in the years ahead.

CONCLUSION

Reflecting on 2004, we believe Orbital's business strategy. which focuses on establishing
and maintaining leading positions in small satellite and rocket markets, continued to create
sustainable economic value last year. Due to the efforts of an excepticnally creative and
dedicated workforce, guided by a proven management team and solid operating processes,
the company's program execution continued to produce high-reliability rockets and space
systems on schedule and within budget for our customers. And with disciplined and conser-
vative management practices and controls, we generated strong across-the-board financial

results in 2004.

While strategic and operational challenges remain in our business, we are starting 2005
with strong momentum, and are looking forward to making it a very productive year for the

company and a very rewarding one for our shareholders.

DR R Sy s st Tl

David W. Thompson
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Garrett E. Pierce
Vice Chairman and
Chief Financial Officer

James R. Thompson
Vice Chairman, President and
Chief Operating Officer

7 March 2005
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David W. Thompson
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

James R.Thompson
Vice Chairman, President and
Chief Operating Officer

Garrett E. Pierce

Vice Chairman and
Chief Financial Officer

Ronald ). Grabe

Executive Vice President and
General Manager,

Launch Systems Group

John M. Danko

Executive Vice President and
General Manager,

Space Systems Group

Antonio L. Elias
Executive Vice President and
General Manager,
Advanced Programs Group

Leo Millstein
Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and Secretary

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Edward F. Crawley *

* Professor; MIT Department of
Aeronautics and Astronautics

* Executive Director, Cambridge
University-MIT Institute

* Orbital Board Member Since 2003

Daniel |. Fink *

* President, DJ. Fink Associates, Inc.

* Former Senior Vice President,
General Electric Company

» Orbital Board Member Since 1983

Lennard A. Fisk*
* Professor of Space Science,
University of Michigan
* Former Associate Administrator, NASA
» Orbital Board Member Since 1993

Robert M. Hanisee ™

* Former Managing Director and Chief
Investment Officer, Trust Company of
the West (TCW) Private Client Group

* Former President and Director of
Research, Seidler Amdec Securities

» Orbital Board Member Since 2002

Robert ). Hermann*

» Lead Independent Director

* Senior Partner, Global Technology
Partners

* Former Senior Vice President,
United Technologies Corporation

* Former Director, Nationa!
Reconnaissance Office

+ Orbital Board Member Since 2002

Janice 1. Obuchowski*

* President, Freedom Technologies, Inc.

* Ambassador, World
Radiocommunication Cenference 2003

* Former Administrator, National
Telecommunications and
Information Agency

* Orbital Board Member Since 1996

* Independent Director

Garrett E. Pierce

* Vice Chairman and Chief Financial
Officer

+ Former Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Offizer, Sensormatic
Electronics Corporation

« Orbital Board Member Since 2000

Frank L. Salizzoni *

* Former Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer, H&R Biock, Inc.

* Former President and Chief Operating
Officer, USAIr Inc. and USAIr Group, Inc.

+ Orbital Board Member Since 1996

Harrison H. Schmitt*

* Aerospace Business Consultant

* Former US. Senater, New Mexico
+ Former Apollo Astronaut, NASA

» Orbital Board Member Since {983

David W.Thompson

» Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
» Orbital Co-Founder

» Orbital Board Member Since 1982

James R.Thompson

* Vice Chairman, President and Chief
Operating Officer

* Former Deputy Acministrator; NASA

* Orbital Board Member Since 1991

Scott L. Webster
« Orbital Co-Founder
« Orbital Board Member Since 1982
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PART I
Item 1. Business

General

We design, develop, manufacture and operate small rockets and space systems for the U.S.
Department of Defense (“DoD”) and other U.S. government agencies and for global commercial
and scientific customers. We define small rockets and space systems to include the following major
product lines:

* Rockets that are used as interceptor and target vehicles for missile defense systems;
¢ Small-class launch vehicles that place satellites weighing up to 4,000 Ibs. into low-Earth orbit;

» Low-Earth orbit, or LEO, satellites weighing up to 5,000 Ibs. which are used for
communications, remote sensing, scientific and military missions; and

» Geosynchronous Earth orbit, or GEO, communications satellites weighing up to 5,000 Ibs.

Orbital was incorporated in Delaware in 1987 to consolidate the assets, liabilities and operations of
two entities established in 1982 and 1983.

It has been our general strategy to develop and expand a core integrated business of space systems
technologies and products, focusing on the design and manufacturing of affordable lightweight
rockets, small satellites and other space systems in order to establish and expand positions in niche
markets that have not typically been emphasized by our larger competitors. It is also part of our
strategy to seek contracts that will fund the development of enhancements to our existing launch
vehicle and space systems product lines. As a result of our capabilities and experience in designing,
developing, manufacturing and operating a broad range of small rockets and space systems, we
believe we are well positioned to capitalize on the demand for small space-technology systems in
missile defense, spaced-based military and intelligence operations, and commercial satellite
communications programs, and to take advantage of continuing government-sponsored initiatives for
space-based scientific research and lunar and planetary exploration initiatives.

Our executive offices are located at 21839 Atlantic Boulevard, Dulles, Virginia 20166 and our
telephone number is (703) 406-5000.

Available Information

We maintain an Internet website at www.orbital.com. In addition to news and other information
about our company, we make available on or through the Investor Information section of our website
our annual report on Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, our current reports on
Form 8-K and all amendments to these reports as soon as reasonably practicable after we
electronically file this material with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission.

At the Investor Information section of our website, we have a Corporate Governance page that
includes, among other things, copies of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, our Corporate
Governance Guidelines and the charters for each standing committee of the Board of Directors,
including the Audit and Finance Committee, the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee
and the Human Resources and Compensation Committee.

Printed copies of all of the above-referenced reports and documents may be requested by
contacting our Investor Relations Department either by mail at our corporate headquarters, by




telephone at (703) 406-5543 or by e-mail at investor.relations@orbital.com. All of the above-
referenced reports and documents are available free of charge.

Description of Orbital’s Products and Services

Our products and services are grouped into three reportable segments that are described more fully
below: launch vehicles (formerly launch vehicles and advanced programs), satellites and related
space systems and transportation management systems. Our business is not seasonal. Customers that
accounted for 10% or more of our consolidated revenues in 2004 were The Boeing Company
(*“Boeing™), DoD and the National Aeronautics and Space Administration (“NASA”).

Launch Vehicles. Our launch vehicles segment is involved in developing and producing
interceptor launch vehicles, suborbital launch vehicles and space launch vehicles, and designing and
demonstrating launch vehicle technologies for advanced space and suborbital programs.

Interceptor Launch Vehicles. We develop and produce interceptor launchers that boost “kill
vehicles” to intercept hostile ballistic missiles and targets. Pursuant to a contract with Boeing, we are
the primary supplier of operational and test interceptor boosters for the U.S. Missile Defense
Agency’s (“MDA”) Ground-based Midcourse Defense (“GMD”) program, for which our
interceptor boost vehicle, a modified version of our Pegasus rocket, is being used as a major
operational element in the U.S. national missile defense system. We have also been awarded a
contract to develop and produce a boost vehicle for MDA’s Kinetic Energy Interceptor (“KEI”)
program. During 2004, we had one successful GMD interceptor flight test and delivered 10 GMD
interceptors, including eight operational vehicles.

Suborbital Launch Vehicles. We design and produce suborbital launch vehicles that place
payloads into a variety of high-altitude trajectories, but unlike space launch vehicles, do not place
payloads into orbit around the Earth. Our suborbital launch products include suborbital rockets and
their principal subsystems, as well as payloads carried by such vehicles.

Various branches and agencies of the U.S. military, including MDA, also use our suborbital
launch vehicles as targets for defense-related applications such as ballistic missile interceptor testing
and related experiments. These rockets are programmed to simulate incoming enemy missiles,
offering an affordable and reliable means to test advanced missile defense systems. Our family of
targets extends from long-range target launch vehicles, which include the primary targets for testing
the MDA’s GMD system, to medium- and short-range target vehicles designed to simulate threats
to U.S. and allied military forces deployed in overseas theaters. We have also developed a short-
range supersonic sea-skimming target that flies just above the ocean’s surface and is currently being
tested by the U.S. Navy.

Since 1982, we have performed a total of 127 interceptor and major suborbital target launch
missions, including five successful missions in 2004 and one successful mission so far in 2005.

Space Launch Vehicles. We developed and produce the Pegasus, Taurus and Minotaur space
launch vehicles that are used by commercial, civil government and military customers to launch
small- and medium-class satellites into low-Earth orbit. Our Pegasus launch vehicle is launched from
our L-1011 carrier aircraft to deploy relatively lightweight satellites into low-Earth orbit. The Taurus
launch vehicle is a ground-launched derivative of the Pegasus vehicle that can carry heavier payloads
to orbit. The ground-launched Minotaur launch vehicle combines Minuteman II and Peacekeeper
ballistic missile rocket motors with our Pegasus and Taurus technology. Since 1990, the Pegasus,
Taurus and Minotaur rockets have performed a total of 46 launches. Pursuant to a contract with the
U.S. Air Force, we are developing a new class of Minotaur rockets that can carry heavier payloads
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than the Taurus. We carried out one successful Taurus mission in 2004. We did not conduct any
Pegasus or Minotaur missions in 2004.

Our launch vehicle technology has also been the basis for several other advanced space and
suborbital programs, including supporting efforts to develop technologies that could be applied to
reusable launch vehicles, space maneuvering vehicles, hypersonic aircraft and missiles, and missile
defense systems. For example, we are developing for NASA a demonstration vehicle intended to
validate technology that will allow spacecraft to rendezvous with other spacecraft without human
intervention. Also, during 2004, we successfully launched two Pegasus-derived Hyper-X hypersonic
research launchers for NASA.

Customers that accounted for 10% or more of our launch vehicles segment revenues in 2004 were
Boeing, DoD and NASA.

Satellites and Related Space Systems. We design and manufacture spacecraft, including
LEO and GEO satellites and planetary (or “deep space”) spacecraft for communications, remote
sensing, scientific, military and technology demonstration missions. Since 1982, we have built and
delivered 92 satellites for various commercial and governmental customers for a wide range of
communications, broadcasting, remote imaging, scientific and national security applications. In 2004,
we had 18 spacecraft in various stages of design, production and/or delivery, including 11 LEO
satellites, six GEO satellites and one planetary spacecraft.

We design and manufacture various other advanced space systems, including satellite command
and data handling, attitude control and structural subsystems for a variety of government and
commercial customers. In addition, we provide a broad range of space-related technical services,
including specialized space-related analytical, engineering and production services for U.S.
government agencies such as NASA, the Jet Propulsion Laboratory, the Naval Research Laboratory
and the U.S. Department of Energy. Since 1982, we have supplied such systems and services on 24
major space missions and over 100 smaller missions.

Customers that accounted for 10% or more of our satellites and related space systems segment
revenues in 2004 were DoD, NASA and Optus Networks Pty. Limited.

Transportation Management Systems. Our transportation management systems division develops
and produces fleet management systems that are used primarily by metropolitan mass transit
operators in the United States. We combine global positioning satellite vehicle tracking technology
with terrestrial wireless communications to help transit agencies manage public bus and public works
systems. Major customers for our transportation management systems include the metropolitan mass
transit authorities in Los Angeles, Philadelphia, Phoenix, San Diego, and a number of other state
and municipal transit systems and private vehicle fleet operators. In addition, we have a contract to
provide a system to a mass transit service in Singapore. We do not consider this product line to be
core to our business.




Competition

We believe that competition for sales of our products and services is based on performance, other
technical features, reliability, price, scheduling and customization, and we believe that we compete
favorably on the basis of these factors. The table below identifies our primary competitors for each
major product line.

Product Line Competitor(s)
Interceptor launch vehicles .............. Lockheed Martin Corporation

Raytheon Company

Target launch vehicles .................. Lockheed Martin Corporation
L-3 Communications, Inc.
Space Vector Corporation, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Pemco Aviation Group

Space launch vehicles .................. Russian and other international launch

vehicles could represent competition for
commercial, as opposed to U.S.
government, launches

Space Exploration Technologies Corp. (a
potential U.S.-based competitor whose
launch vehicle is still in the development
phase)

GEO communications satellites .......... The Boeing Company
Lockheed Martin Corporation
Loral Space and Communications Ltd.
Alcatel Alenia Space
EADS Astrium

LEO science and technology satellites and Ball Aerospace and Technology Corporation
interplanetary spacecraft .............. Lockheed Martin Corporation
General Dynamics Corporation

Military and classified satellites and other Ball Aerospace and Technology Corporation
SPACE SYSEMS . ..o vvv et Lockheed Martin Corporation
The Boeing Company
General Dynamics Corporation
Northrop Grumman Corporation

Space technical services................. Jackson and Tull Inc.
Northrop Grumman Corporation
Raytheon Company
Swales Aerospace, Inc.

Transportation management systems ... ... Siemens Corporation

Many of our competitors are larger and have substantially greater resources than we do.
Furthermore, it is possible that other domestic or foreign companies or governments, some with
greater experience in the space and defense industry and many with greater financial resources than
we possess, will seek to provide products or services that compete with our products or services. Any
such foreign competitor could benefit from subsidies from or other protective measures by its home
country.




Research and Development

We invest in product-related research and development to conceive and develop new products and
to enhance existing products. Our research and development expenses totaled approximately
$6.3 million, $7.8 million and $4.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. In addition, a large portion of our total new product development and enhancement
programs is funded under customer contracts.

Patents

We rely, in part, on patents, trade secrets and know-how to develop and maintain our competitive
position and technological advantage, particularly with respect to our launch vehicle and satellite
products. We hold U.S. and foreign patents relating to the Pegasus vehicle, certain of our satellites
and other systems and products. The majority of our U.S. patents relating to the Pegasus vehicle
expire between 2007 and 2016, and most of our U.S. patents relating to our satellites expire
beginning in 2013.

Components, Raw Materials and Carrier Aircraft

We purchase a significant percentage of our product components, structural assemblies and certain
key satellite components and instruments from third parties. We also occasionally obtain from the
U.S. government parts and equipment that are used in the production of our products or in the
provision of our services. Generally, we have not experienced material difficulty in obtaining product
components or necessary parts and equipment and we believe that alternatives to our existing sources
of supply are available, although increased costs and possible delays could be incurred in securing
alternative sources of supply. We rely upon a sole source supplier for motors used on all our launch
vehicles. While alternative sources would be available, the inability of such supplier to provide us
with motors could result in significant delays, expenses and loss of revenues. Our ability to launch
our Pegasus vehicle depends on the availability of an aircraft with the capability of carrying and
launching such space launch vehicle. We own a modified Lockheed L-1011 carrier aircraft that is
used to launch the Pegasus vehicle. In the event that our L-1011 carrier aircraft were to be
unavailable, we would experience significant delays, expenses and loss of revenues as a result of
having to acquire and modify a new carrier aircraft.

U.S. Government Contracts

During 2004, 2003 and 2002, approximately 80%, 67% and 58%, respectively, of our total annual
revenues were derived from contracts with the U.S. government and its agencies or from
subcontracts with other U.S. government prime contractors. Most of our U.S. government contracts
are funded incrementally on a year-to-year basis.

Our major contracts with the U.S. government primarily fall into two categories: cost-reimbursable
contracts and fixed-price contracts. Approximately 90% and 10% of revenues from U. S. government
contracts in 2004 were derived from cost-reimbursable contracts and fixed-price contracts,
respectively. Under a cost-reimbursable contract, we recover our actual allowable costs incurred,
allocable overhead costs and a fee consisting of a base amount that is fixed at the inception of the
contract and/or an award amount that is based on the customer’s evaluation of our performance in
terms of the criteria stated in the contract. Our fixed-price contracts include firm fixed-price and
fixed-price incentive fee contracts. Under firm fixed-price contracts, work performed and products
shipped are paid for at a fixed price without adjustment for actual costs incurred in connection with
the contract. Therefore, we bear the risk of loss due to increased cost, although some of this risk
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may be passed on to subcontractors. Fixed-price incentive fee contracts provide for sharing by us and
the customer of unexpected costs incurred or savings realized within specified limits, and may
provide for adjustments in price depending on actual contract performance other than costs. Costs in
excess of the negotiated maximum (ceiling) price and the risk of loss by reason of such excess costs
are borne by us, although some of this risk may be passed on to subcontractors.

All our U.S. government contracts and, in general, our subcontracts with other U.S. government
prime contractors provide that such contracts may be terminated for convenience by the U.S.
government or the prime contractor, respectively. Furthermore, any of these contracts may become
subject to a government-issued stop work order under which we would be required to suspend
production. In the event of a termination for convenience, contractors generally are entitled to
receive the purchase price for delivered items, reimbursement for allowable costs for work in process
and an allowance for reasonable profit thereon or adjustment for loss if completion of performance
would have resulted in a loss. For a more detailed description of risks relating to the U.S.
government contract industry, see “Risks Related to Our Business and Industry.” We derive a
significant portion of our revenues from U.S. government contracts, which are dependent on
continued political support and funding and are subject to termination by the U.S. government at
any time.

A portion of our business is classified for national security purposes by the U.S. government and
cannot be specifically described. The operating results of these classified programs are included in
our consolidated financial statements. The business risks associated with classified programs, as a
general matter, do not differ materially from those of our other U. S. government programs and
products.

Regulation

Our ability to pursue our business activities is regulated by various agencies and departments of
the U.S. government and, in certain circumstances, the governments of other countries. Commercial
space launches require licenses from the U.S. Department of Transportation (“DoT”’) and operation
of our L-1011 aircraft requires licenses from certain agencies of the DoT, including the Federal
Aviation Administration. Our classified programs require that we and certain employees maintain
appropriate security clearances. We also require licenses from the U.S. Department of State
(“DoS”) and the U.S. Department of Commerce (“DoC”) with respect to work we do for foreign
customers or with foreign subcontractors.

Backlog

Our firm backlog was approximately $1.17 billion at December 31, 2004 and approximately
$995 million at December 31, 2003. We expect to convert approximately $535 million of the
2004 year-end firm backlog into revenues during 2005.

Our firm backlog as of December 31, 2004 included approximately $1.05 billion of contracts with
the U.S. government and its agencies or from subcontracts with prime contractors of the U.S.
government, of which approximately $615 million is related to contracts for GMD and KEI
interceptor launch vehicles. Most of our government contracts are funded incrementally on a year-to-
year basis. Firm backlog from government contracts at December 31, 2004 included total funded
orders of $135 million and orders not yet funded of $915 million. Changes in government policies,
priorities or funding levels through agency or program budget reductions by the U.S. Congress or
executive agencies could materially adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.
Furthermore, contracts with the U.S. government may be terminated or suspended by the U.S.
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government at any time, with or without cause. Such contract suspensions or terminations could
result in unreimbursable expenses or charges or otherwise adversely affect our business.

Total backlog was approximately $2.31 billion at December 31, 2004. Total backlog includes firm
backlog in addition to unexercised options, indefinite-quantity contracts and undefinitized orders and
contract award selections. Backlog at December 31, 2004 does not give effect to new orders received
or any terminations or cancellations since that date.

Employees

As of February 1, 2005, Orbital had approximately 2,450 permanent employees. None of our
employees is subject to collective bargaining agreements. We believe our employee relations are
good.

¥ % %

Financial information about our products and services, domestic and foreign operations and export
sales is included in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” and the notes to our consolidated financial statements, and is incorporated herein by
reference.

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

All statements other than those of historical facts included in this Form 10-K, including those
related to our financial outlook, liquidity, goals, business strategy, projected plans and objectives of
management for future operating results, are forward-looking statements within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
These forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks and uncertainties,
including the risks set forth below, and are based on our current expectations and projections about
future events. Our actual results, performance or achievements could be materially different from
any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements. Although we believe the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are
based on reasonable assumptions, there is a risk that these expectations will not be attained and that
any deviations will be material. We disclaim any obligation or undertaking to disseminate any
updates or revisions to any forward-looking statement contained in this Form 10-K to reflect any
changes in our expectations or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any
statement is based.

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry
Investors should carefully consider, among other factors, the risks listed below.

We derive a significant portion of our revenues from U.S. government contracts, which are dependent
on continued political support and funding and ave subject to termination by the U.S. government at
any time.

A substantial majority of our revenues and firm backlog is derived from U. S. government
contracts. Most of our U.S. government contracts are funded incrementally on a year-to-year basis
and are subject to uncertain future funding levels. Furthermore, our direct and indirect contracts
with the U.S. government may be terminated or suspended by the U.S. government or its prime
contractors at any time, with or without cause. There can be no assurance that government contracts
will not be terminated or suspended in the future, or that contract suspensions or terminations will
not result in unreimbursable expenses or charges or other adverse effects on our financial condition.
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A decline in U.S. government support and funding for key missile defense and space programs could
materially adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

We are also subject to laws and regulations regulating the formation, administration and
performance of, and accounting for, U.S. government contracts. With respect to such contracts, any
failure to comply with applicable laws could result in contract termination, price or fee reductions, or
suspension or debarment from contracting with the U.S. government.

Our U.S. government contracts are subject to audits that could result in a material adverse effect on
our financial condition and vesults of operations if a material adjustment is required.

The accuracy and appropriateness of our direct and indirect costs and expenses under our
contracts with the U.S. government are subject to extensive regulation and audit by the Defense
Contract Audit Agency, or by other agencies of the U.S. government. These agencies have the right
to audit our cost estimates and/or allowable cost allocations with respect to certain contracts. From
time to time we have in the past made and may in the future be required to make adjustments and
reimbursements as a result of these audits. Responding to governmental audits, inquiries or
investigations may involve significant expense and divert management attention. Also, an adverse
finding in any such audit, inquiry or investigation could involve fines, injunctions or other sanctions.

Termination of our backlog of orders could negatively impact our revenues.

All of our direct and indirect contracts with the U.S. government or its prime contractors may be
terminated or suspended at any time, with or without cause, for the convenience of the government.
Our contract with Boeing to provide interceptor boosters for MDA’s GMD program is material, and
the program’s termination could have an adverse impact on our liquidity and operations. From time
to time, certain of our commercial contracts have also given the customer the right to unilaterally
terminate the contracts. For these reasons, we cannot assure you that our backlog will ultimately
result in revenues.

The majority of our contracts are long-term contracts, and our revenue recognition and profitability
under such contracts may be adversely affected to the extent that actual costs exceed estimates or
that there are delays in completing such contracts.

The majority of our contracts are long-term contracts. We generally recognize revenues on long-
term contracts using the percentage-of-completion method of accounting, whereby revenue, and
therefore profit, is recognized based on actual costs incurred in relation to total estimated costs to
complete the contract. Revenue recognition and our profitability, if any, from a particular contract
may be adversely affected to the extent that original cost estimates, estimated costs to complete or
incentive or award fee estimates are revised, delivery schedules are delayed or progress under a
contract is otherwise impeded.

We may not receive full payment for our satellites or launch services in the event of a failure, and we
could incur penalties if our satellites are not delivered or our rockets are not launched on schedule.

Some of our satellite contracts provide for performance-based payments to be made to us after the
satellite is on-orbit. Additionally, some contracts also require us to refund a percentage of payments
made prior to launch if performance-based incentives are not achieved. Launch contracts may also
have payments contingent upon a successful launch. While we generally intend to procure insurance
to compensate us for incentive payments that are not made in the event of a launch or on-orbit
failure, insurance may not be available on economical terms, if at all. In addition, some of our
satellite and launch contracts require us to pay penalties in the event that satellites are not delivered,
or the launch does not occur, on a timely basis. Our failure to receive incentive payments, or a
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requirement that we refund amounts previously received or pay delay penalties, could adversely affect
revenue recognition, profitability and our liquidity.

Our fixed-price and cost-reimbursable contracts could subject us to losses and impair our liquidity if
we experience cost overruns.

We provide our products and services primarily through fixed-price and cost-reimbursable
contracts. Cost overruns may result in losses and, if the magnitude of an overrun or overruns is
significant, could impair our liquidity position:

» Under fixed-price contracts, our customers pay us for work performed and products shipped
without adjustment for the costs we incur in the process. Therefore, we generally bear all of the
risk of losses as a result of increased costs on these contracts, although some of this risk may be
passed on to subcontractors. Some of our fixed-price contracts provide for sharing of unexpected
costs incurred or savings realized within specified limits and may provide for adjustments in
price depending on actual contract performance other than costs. We bear the entire risk of cost
overruns in excess of the negotiated maximum amount of unexpected costs to be shared. Any
significant overruns in the future could materially impair our liquidity and operations.

» Under cost-reimbursable contracts, we are reimbursed for allowable incurred costs plus a fee,
which may be fixed or variable. There is no guarantee as to the amount of fee we will be
awarded under a cost-reimbursable contract with a variable fee. The price on a cost-
reimbursable contract is based on allowable costs incurred, but generally is subject to contract
funding limitations. If we incur costs in excess of the funding limitation specified in the
contract, this would be at our own risk and we may not be able to recover those cost overruns.

Our success depends on our ability to penetrate and retain markets for our existing products and to
continue to conceive, design, manufacture and market new products on a cost-effective and timely
basis.

We anticipate that we will continue to incur expenses to design and develop new products. There
can be no assurance that we will be able to achieve the technological advances necessary to remain
competitive and profitable, that new products will be developed and manufactured on schedule or on
a cost-effective basis or that our existing products will not become technologically obsolete. Our
failure to predict accurately the needs of our customers and prospective customers, and to develop
products or product enhancements that address those needs, may result in the loss of current
customers or the inability to secure new customers. The development of new or enhanced products is
a complex and uncertain process that requires the accurate anticipation of technological and market
trends and can take a significant amount of time to complete. We may experience design,
manufacturing, marketing and other difficulties that could delay or prevent the development,
introduction or acceptance of new products and enhancements.

There can be no assurance that our products will be successfully developed or manufactured or that
they will perform as intended.

Most of the products we develop and manufacture are technologically advanced and sometimes
include novel systems that must function under highly demanding operating conditions and are
subject to significant technological change and innovation. We have in the past experienced product
failures, cost overruns in developing and manufacturing our products, delays in delivery and other
operational problems. We may experience some product and service failures, schedule delays and
other problems in connection with our launch vehicles, satellites, transportation management systems
and other products in the future. Some of our satellite and launch services contracts impose penalties
on us for delays, which could be significant. In addition to any costs resulting from product
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warranties or required remedial action, product failures or significant delays may result in increased
costs or loss of revenues due to postponement or cancellation of subsequently scheduled operations or
product deliveries and claims against performance bonds. Negative publicity from product failures
may also impair our ability to win new contracts.

Several years of low demand and overcapacity in the commercial satellite market have resulted in
slow growth in demand for our small GEO satellites.

The commercial satellite market has experienced pricing pressures due to excess capacity in the
telecommunications industry and weakened demand over the past several years. Satellite demand
also has been impacted by the business difficulties encountered by some companies in the
commercial satellite services industry, which have resulted in reduced revenues and/or access to
capital and a reduction in the total market size in the near term. In addition, our competitors tend to
be larger satellite manufacturers who are able to provide aggressive pricing terms. We did not win
any new commercial GEO satellite contracts in 2004. While the market appears to be making a
recovery, we may continue to experience slow growth in the demand for our small GEO satellites.

If our key suppliers fail to perform as expected, our reputation may be damaged, we may experience
delays and lose customers and our revenues, profitability and cash flow may decline.

We purchase a significant percentage of our product components, structural assemblies and some
key satellite components and instruments from third parties. We also occasionally obtain from the
U.S. government parts and equipment used in the production of our products or the provision of our
services. In addition, we have a sole source for the rocket motors we use on our Pegasus and Taurus
launch vehicles and the interceptor boost vehicles that we are developing and producing for MDA
under our contract with Boeing. If our subcontractors fail to perform as expected or encounter
financial difficulties, we may have difficulty replacing them in a timely or cost effective manner. As a
result, we may experience performance delays that could result in additional program costs, a
customer terminating our contract for default, or damage to our customer relationships, causing our
revenues, profitability and cash flow to decline. In addition, negative publicity from any failure of one
of our products as a result of a failure by a key supplier could damage our reputation and prevent us
from winning new contracts.

Ouy international business is subject to risks. Political and economic instability in foreign markets
may have a material adverse effect on our operating results.

For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, direct sales to non-U.S. customers
comprised approximately 15%, 19% and 12%, respectively, of our consolidated revenues. Further, as
of December 31, 2004, approximately 7% of our firm backlog was derived from non-U.S. customers.
International contracts are subject to numerous risks, including:

+ political and economic instability in foreign markets;
s restrictive trade policies of the U.S. government and foreign governments;
* inconsistent product regulation by foreign agencies or governments;

» imposition of product tariffs and burdens;

» costs of complying with a wide variety of international and U.S. export laws and regulatory
requirements;

* inability to obtain required U.S. export licenses; and

« foreign currency and standby letter of credit exposure.
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We operate in a regulated industry, and our inability to secure or maintain the licenses, clearances or
approvals necessary to operate our business could have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations.

Our ability to pursue our business activities is regulated by various agencies and departments of
the U.S. government and, in certain circumstances, the governments of other countries. Commercial
space launches require licenses from the DoT, and operation of our L-1011 aircraft requires licenses
from certain agencies of the DoT, including the Federal Aviation Administration. Qur classified
programs require that we and certain employees maintain appropriate security clearances. There can
be no assurance that we will be successful in our future efforts to secure and maintain necessary
licenses, clearances or regulatory approvals. Exports of our products, services and technical
information frequently require licenses from the DoS or from the DoC. We have a number of
international customers and subcontractors. Our inability to secure or maintain any necessary licenses
or approvals or significant delays in obtaining such licenses or approvals could negatively impact our
ability to compete successfully in international markets, and could result in an event of default under
certain of our international contracts.

We face significant competition in each of our lines of business and many of our competitors possess
significantly more resources than we do.

Many of our competitors are larger and have substantially greater resources than we do.
Furthermore, it is possible that other domestic or foreign companies or governments, some with
greater experience in the space industry and many with greater financial resources than we possess,
could seek to produce products or services that compete with our products or services, including new
launch vehicles using new technology which could render our launch vehicles less competitively
viable. Some of our foreign competitors currently benefit from, and others may benefit in the future
from, subsidies from or other protective measures by their home countries.

Our financial covenants may rvestrict our operating activities.

Our revolving credit facility and the indenture governing our 9% senior notes contain certain
financial and operating covenants, including, among other things, certain coverage ratios, as well as
limitations on our ability to incur debt, make dividend payments, make investments, sell all or
substantially all of our assets and engage in mergers and consolidations and certain acquisitions.
These covenants may restrict our ability to pursue certain business initiatives or certain acquisition
transactions. In addition, failure to meet any of the financial covenants in our credit facility could
cause an event of default under and/or accelerate some or all of our indebtedness, which would have
a material adverse effect on us.

The loss of executive officers and our inability to retain other key personnel could adversely affect our
operations.

Our inability to retain our executive officers and other key employees, including personnel with
security clearances required for classified work and highly skilled engineers, could have an adverse
effect on our operations.

The anticipated benefits of future acquisitions may not be realized.

From time to time we may evaluate potential acquisitions that we believe would enhance our
business. Were we to complete any acquisition transaction, the anticipated benefits may not be fully
realized if we are unable to successfully integrate the acquired operations, technologies and personnel
into our organization.
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We are subject to environmental regulations.

We are subject to various federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations relating to
the operation of our business, including those governing pollution, the handling, storage and disposal
of hazardous substances and the ownership and operation of real property. Such laws may result in
significant liabilities and costs. We do not believe that compliance with or liability under
environmental laws and regulations has had a material impact on our operations to date, but there
can be no assurance that such laws and regulations will not have a material adverse effect on us in
the future.

Our restated certificate of incorporation, our amended and restated bylaws, our stockholder rights
plan and Delaware law contain anti-takeover provisions that may adversely affect the rights of our
stockholders.

Our Board of Directors has the authority to issue up to 10 million shares of our preferred stock,
$0.01 par value per share, and to determine the price, rights, preferences and privileges of those
shares without any further vote or action by the stockholders. The rights of the holders of our
common stock will be subject to, and may be adversely affected by, the rights of the holders of any
preferred stock that may be issued in the future. The issuance of preferred stock, while providing
desirable flexibility in connection with possible acquisitions and other corporate purposes, could have
the effect of making it more difficult for a third party to acquire a majority of our outstanding voting
stock.

In addition to our ability to issue preferred stock without stockholder approval, our charter
documents contain other provisions which could have an anti-takeover effect, including:

+ our charter provides for a staggered Board of Directors as a result of which only one of the
three classes of directors is elected each year;

» any merger, acquisition or other business combination that is not approved by our Board of
Directors must be approved by 66%:% of voting stockholders;

+ stockholders holding less than 10% of our outstanding voting stock cannot call a special meeting
of stockholders; and

* stockholders must give advance notice to nominate directors or submit proposals for
consideration at stockholder meetings.

In 1998, we adopted a stockholder rights plan which is intended to deter coercive or unfair
takeover tactics. Under the rights plan, a preferred share purchase right, which is attached to each
share of our common stock, generally will be triggered upon the acquisition, or actions that would
result in the acquisition, of 15% or more of our common stock by any person or group. If triggered,
these rights would entitle our stockholders (other than the acquirer) to purchase, for the exercise
price, shares of Orbital’s common stock having a market value of two times the exercise price. The
exercise price, which is subject to certain adjustments, is $210 per right. The stock purchase rights
would cause substantial dilution to a person or group that attempts to acquire us on terms not
approved by our Board of Directors.

In addition, we are subject to the anti-takeover provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General
Corporation Law, which restricts the ability of current stockholders holding more than 15% of our
voting shares to acquire us without the approval of 66%:% of the other stockholders. These provisions
could discourage potential acquisition proposals and could delay or prevent a change in control
transaction. They could also have the effect of discouraging others from making tender offers for our
common stock. As a result, these provisions may prevent our stock price from increasing
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substantially in response to actual or rumored takeover attempts. These provisions may also prevent
changes in our management.

We may not have the ability to raise the funds necessary to finance the repurchase offer required by
the indenture governing our senior notes in the event of a change of control, which may prevent us
Jrom entering into or consummating a change of control transaction otherwise in the best interests of
our stockholders.

In the event of a change of control, under the terms of the indenture governing the terms of our
$126.4 million aggregate principal amount of our 9% senior notes due 2011, we are required to offer
to repurchase the notes at a premium. If a change of control were to occur, there can be no
assurance that we would have sufficient financial resources, or would be able to arrange financing, to
pay the purchase price for all notes tendered by holders thereof. In addition, our repurchase of the
notes as a result of a change of control may be prohibited or limited by, or constitute an event of
default under, the terms of our credit facility or the terms of other agreements which we may enter
into from time to time. Because our failure to repurchase the notes would constitute an event of
default under the indenture, we may not be able to consummate a change of control transaction,
even if the transaction may be in the best interests of our stockholders.

Item 2. Properties

We lease approximately one million square feet of office, engineering and manufacturing space in
various locations in the United States, as summarized in the table below:

Business Unit Principal Location(s)
Corporate Headquarters Dulles, Virginia
Launch Vehicles Chandler, Arizona; Dulles, Virginia;
Vandenberg Air Force Base, California
Satellites and Related Space Systems Dulles, Virginia; Greenbelt, Maryland
Transportation Management Systems Columbia, Maryland

We also own a 125,000 square foot state-of-the-art space systems manufacturing facility that
primarily houses our satellite manufacturing, assembly and testing activities in Dulles, Virginia.

We believe that our existing facilities are adequate for our requirements for the foreseeable future.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
We are party to certain litigation or proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. In the

opinion of management, the probability is remote that the outcome of any such litigation or
proceedings would have a material adverse effect on our results of operations or financial condition.
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Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There was no matter submitted to a vote of our security holders during the fourth quarter of 2004.

Item 4A. Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table sets forth the name, age and position of each of the executive officers of
Orbital as of February 25, 2005. All executive officers are elected annually and serve at the
discretion of the Board of Directors.

Name Age Position

David W. Thompson ................. 50  Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer

James R. Thompson ................. 68  Vice Chairman, President and Chief
Operating Officer, Director

Garrett E. Pierce .................... 60  Vice Chairman and Chief Financial
Officer, Director

Ronald J. Grabe .. ................... 59  Executive Vice President and General
Manager, Launch Systems Group

John M. Danko ..................... 63  Executive Vice President and General
Manager, Space Systems Group

Antonio L. Elias..................... 55 Executive Vice President and General
Manager, Advanced Programs Group

Leo Millstein . ...................... 57  Senior Vice President, General Counsel

and Corporate Secretary

David W. Thompson is a co-founder of Orbital and has been Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer of Orbital since 1982. From 1982 until October 1999, he also served as our
President. Prior to founding Orbital, Mr. Thompson was employed by Hughes Electronics
Corporation as special assistant to the President of its Missile Systems Group and by NASA at the
Marshall Space Flight Center as a project manager and engineer, and also worked on the Space
Shuttle’s autopilot design at the Charles Stark Draper Laboratory. Mr. Thompson is a Fellow of the
American Institute of Aeronautics and Astronautics, the American Astronautical Society and the
Royal Aeronautical Society, and is a member of the U.S. National Academy of Engineering.

James R. Thompson (who is not related to David W. Thompson), has been Vice Chairman,
President and Chief Operating Officer since April 2002, and was President and Chief Operating
Officer since October 1999. He has been a director of the Company since 1992. He was Acting
General Manager of our Transportation Management Systems Group from 2001 until August 2003.
From 1993 until October 1999, Mr. Thompson served as Executive Vice President and General
Manager, Launch Systems Group. Mr. Thompson was Executive Vice President and Chief Technical
Officer of Orbital from 1991 to 1993. He was Deputy Administrator of NASA from 1989 to 1991.
From 1986 until 1989, Mr. Thompson was Director of the Marshall Space Flight Center at NASA.
Mr. Thompson was Deputy Director for Technical Operations at Princeton University’s Plasma
Physics Laboratory from 1983 through 1986. Before that, he had a 20-year career with NASA at the
Marshall Space Flight Center. He is a director of SPACEHAB Incorporated.

Garrett E. Pierce has been Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer since April 2002, and was
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since August 2000. He has been a director of
the Company since August 2000. From 1996 until August 2000, he was Executive Vice President
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and Chief Financial Officer of Sensormatic Electronics Corp., a supplier of electronic security
systems, where he was also named Chief Administrative Officer in July 1998. Prior to joining
Sensormatic, Mr. Pierce was the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of California
Microwave, Inc., a supplier of microwave, radio frequency and satellite systems and products for
communications and wireless networks. From 1980 to 1993, Mr. Pierce was with Materials Research
Corporation, a provider of thin film equipment and high purity materials to the semiconductor,
telecommunications and media storage industries, where he progressed from Chief Financial Officer
to President and Chief Executive Officer. Materials Research Corporation was acquired by Sony
Corporation as a wholly owned subsidiary in 1989. From 1972 to 1980, Mr. Pierce held various
management positions with The Signal Companies.

Ronald J. Grabe has been Executive Vice President and General Manager, Launch Systems
Group since 1999. From 1996 to 1999, he was Senior Vice President and Assistant General Manager
of the Launch Systems Group, and Senior Vice President of the Launch Systems Group since 1995.
From 1994 to 1995, Mr. Grabe served as Vice President for Business Development in the Launch
Systems Group. From 1980 to 1993, Mr. Grabe was a NASA astronaut during which time he flew
four Space Shuttle missions and was lead astronaut for development of the International Space
Station.

John M. Danko has been Executive Vice President and General Manager, Space Systems Group
since 2003. He served as Senior Vice President and Acting General Manager, Space Systems Group
during 2002. From 1998 until the end of 2001, he served as Deputy General Manager, Space
Systems Group. He previously was in charge of our Technical Services Division, a position he had
held since 1989 at one of our predecessor companies. Mr. Danko held various positions with OAO
Corporation from 1975 until 1989, including General Manager of the Aerospace Division when it
was formed in 1980.

Antonio L. Elias has been Executive Vice President and General Manager, Advanced Programs
Group since October 2001, and was Senior Vice President and General Manager, Advanced
Programs Group since August 1997. From January 1996 until August 1997, Dr. Elias served as
Senior Vice President and Chief Technical Officer of Orbital. From May 1993 through December
1995, he was Senior Vice President for Advanced Projects, and was Senior Vice President, Space
Systems Division from 1990 to April 1993. He was Vice President, Engineering of Orbital from 1989
to 1990 and was Chief Engineer from 1986 to 1989. From 1980 to 1986, Dr. Elias was an Assistant
Professor of Aeronautics and Astronautics at Massachusetts Institute of Technology. He was elected
to the National Academy of Engineering in 2001.

Leo Milistein has been Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary since
August 2003. From 2002 until 2003, Mr. Millstein worked as a consultant on software and
telecommunications matters. From 2000 to 2002, Mr. Millstein was Vice President, General Counsel
and Corporate Secretary of MERANT plc, a software company listed on the London Stock
Exchange and NASDAQ. From 1989 to 2000, Mr. Millstein held a variety of senior management
and legal positions at the International Telecommunications Satellite Organization (INTELSAT),
including Director of Corporate Restructuring from 1999 to 2000, Deputy General Counsel from
1995 to 1999, and Assistant General Counsel from 1989 to 1995. From 1984 to 1989, he was a
partner of Dyer, Ellis, Joseph & Mills, a Washington, D.C. based law firm. From 1974 to 1984,
Mr. Millstein held various legal positions with the Communications Satellite Corporation
(COMSAT).

15




PART 11

Item 5. Markert for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities

On February 25, 2005, there were 2,055 Orbital common stockholders of record.

Our common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the symbol ORB.
The range of high and low sales prices of Orbital common stock, as reported on the NYSE, was as
follows:

2004 _High Low_
dth QuUarter. . ... .o $13.00 $10.35
3rd QUAITET . . vt e e $13.60 $ 9.77
2nd QUArter ...t $14.06 $12.05
ISt QUATET o\ttt e e e e e $13.74 $11.32
2003 High  Low
dth QUAter. . ..ottt $12.41 $ 8.89
3rd QUAItET. . .ottt $ 973 $ 7.41
2nd QUAITET L. o e $ 7.77 $ 4.99
ISt QUATTET « oottt et e e $ 5.96 $ 4.25

We have never paid any cash dividends on our common stock, nor do we anticipate paying cash
dividends on our common stock at any time in the foreseeable future. Moreover, our credit facility
and our indenture governing our 9% senior notes contain covenants limiting our ability to pay cash
dividends. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

The transfer agent for our common stock is:

EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.
P.O. Box 43010

Providence, RI 02940
Telephone: (781) 575-3170

www.equiserve.com
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The selected consolidated financial data of the company for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003, 2002, 2001 and 2000 have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements.
This information should be read in conjunction with the 2004, 2003 and 2002 consolidated financial
statements and the related notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Operating Data:

Revenues ...... ..o i
Costsof goods sold . .......... ... i

Gross profit. .. ..o e
Operating eXpemses ... ..ot e a e e

Income (loss) from operations. .. ............. ... ...
Allocated share of losses of affiliate ........................
Gain on reversal of allocated losses of affiliate................
Debt extinguishment expense . ...............c.oooiaL,
Other eXpense, Net. ... ... i

Income (loss) before provision for income taxes

and discontinued operations .. ......... ..o
Benefit from (provision for) income taxes ............

Income (loss) from continuing operations ...................
Income from discontinued operations .. .....................
Cumulative effect of change in accounting...................

Netincome (108S) ... ..ottt e

Basic Income (Loss) Per Share:

Income (loss) from continuing operations ...................
Income from discontinued operations ..............c........
Cumulative effect of change in accounting...................

Netincome (1os8) ... ... i

Shares used in computing basic per share amounts ...........

Diluted Income (Loss) Per Share:

Income (loss) from continuing operations ...................
Income from discontinued operations .......................
Cumulative effect of change in accounting. ..................

Net income (l0SS) . ..o e

Shares used in computing diluted per share amounts
Statement of Cash Flow Data:

Cash flow from operating activities .........................
Cash flow from investing activities .........................
Cash flow from financing activities . ........................
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Years Ended December 31,

2004(1) 2003(2) 2002 2001(3) 2000(4)
(In thousands, except per share data)

$675,935  $581,500 $551,642 § 415249 § 379,539
566,787 477,273 460,231 387,433 379,504
109,148 104,227 91,411 27,816 35
53,825 68,669 62,372 80,789 165,499
55,323 35,558 29,039 (52,973)  (165,464)
— —_ — (26,495)  (119,183)

— 40,586 — — —
(2,099)  (38,836) — — —
(9,096)  (17,336)  (15,089) (16,146) (18,929)
44,128 19,972 13,950 (95,614) (303,576)
155,872 265 (263) — (9,886)
200,000 20,237 13,685 (95,614)  (313,462)
— — 875 114,565 35,272

— — (13,795) — —
$200,000 $ 20,237 § 765 § 18951  $(278,190)
$§ 403 $ 043 % 031 § (249 § (8.36)
— — 0.02 2.98 0.94

— — (0.31) —_ —
$ 403 $ 043 § 002 § 049 § (7.42)
49,658 46,718 43,908 38,424 37,468
$ 308 $ 035 $ 030 $ (249 §$ (8.36)
— — 0.02 2.98 0.94

— — (0.30) — —
$§ 308 $ 035 §$ 002 3§ 049 3 (7.42)
65,022 58,221 44,937 38,424 37,468
$ 66,998 $ 46,474 $(29,848) $ (80,989) $ 35,585
(3,399)  (15,594)  (14,341) 236,980 42,675
1,005 (13,420) 24414 (137.852)  (86,565)




()

@
3

(4)

Years Ended December 31,
2004(1) 2003(2) 2002 2001(3) 2000(4)
(In thousands, except per share data)

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash, restricted cash and short-term investments ............. $133,819 $ 80,158 $ 53,741 $§ 74030 $ 52,049
Net working capital . ... 186,361 115,189 92,350 (63,384)  (160,963)
Total aSSetS . oo\t e e 663,770 439,300 416,310 432,734 516,213
Short-term borrowings ......... ... 161 297 1,854 103,710 134,431
Long-term obligations, net ............ ...t 128,375 137,116 114,833 4,665 108,291
Stockholders’ equity ... i e 394,124 166,877 134,568 94,285 44,151

Operating income in 2004 included a $2.5 million gain recorded as a credit to settlement expense. Benefit from (provision for)
income taxes in 2004 included a $156.5 million income tax benefit resulting from the December 31, 2004 reversal of substantially all
of the company’s deferred income tax valuation allowance.

Operating income in 2003 included $3.9 million in net settlement expenses.

Revenue, gross profit and operating income in 2001 included a $13.0 million favorable adjustment as a result of a contract settlement
and a $3.4 million reversal of a provision for uncollectible receivables in connection with a contract that was terminated in March
2001. Operating expenses in 2001 included $5.4 million of litigation-related settlement expenses.

Operating income in 2000 was negatively impacted by the following: (i) a $53.7 million provision to write down receivables and
inventory related to a former affiliate; (ii) a $15.9 million asset impairment charge and a $3.4 million provision for uncollectible
receivables related to a contract ultimately terminated in March 2001; and (iii) an $11.5 million charge in connection with the
settlement of a class action lawsuit against the company.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Overview

With the exception of historical information, the matters discussed below under the headings
“Consolidated Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,”
“Segment Results,” “Liquidity and Capital Resources” and elsewhere in this Annual Report include
forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our
control. Readers should be cautioned that a number of important factors, including those identified
above in “Item 1 - Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” and “Risks Related to
Our Business and Industry” may affect actual results and may cause actual results to differ
materially from those anticipated or expected in any forward-looking statement.

We develop and manufacture small rockets and space systems for commercial, military and civil
government customers. Our primary products are satellites and launch vehicles, including low-orbit,
geosynchronous and planetary spacecraft for communications, remote sensing, scientific and defense
missions; ground- and air-launched rockets that deliver satellites into orbit; and missile defense
systems that are used as interceptor and target vehicles. We also offer space-related technical
services to government agencies and develop and build satellite-based transportation management
systems for public transit agencies and private vehicle fleet operators.

Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments
based upon estimates and assumptions that are inherently uncertain. Such judgments affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities. Management continuously evaluates its estimates and assumptions, including
those related to long-term contracts and incentives, inventories, long-lived assets, warranty
obligations, income taxes, contingencies and litigation, and the carrying values of assets and
liabilities. Management bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these
estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

The following is a summary of the most critical accounting policies used in the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements.

* Our revenue is derived primarily from long-term contracts. Revenues on cost-reimbursable
contracts are recognized to the extent of costs incurred plus a proportionate amount of fee
earned. Revenues on long-term fixed-price contracts are generally recognized using the
percentage-of-completion method of accounting. Such revenues are recorded based on the
percentage that costs incurred to date bear to the most recent estimates of total costs to
complete each contract. Estimating future costs and, therefore, revenues and profits, is a process
requiring a high degree of management judgment, including management’s assumptions
regarding our future operations as well as general economic conditions. In the event of a change
in total estimated contract cost or profit, the cumulative effect of such change is recorded in the
period the change in estimate occurs. Frequently, the period of performance of a contract
extends over a long period of time and, as such, revenue recognition and our profitability from a
particular contract may be adversely affected to the extent that estimated cost to complete or
incentive or award fee estimates are revised, delivery schedules are delayed or progress under a
contract is otherwise impeded. Accordingly, our recorded revenues and gross profits from period
to period can fluctuate significantly. In the event cost estimates indicate a loss on a contract, the
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total amount of such loss, excluding general and administrative expense, is recorded in the
period in which the loss is first estimated.

Certain contracts include incentive provisions for increased or decreased revenue and profit
based on actual performance against established targets. Incentive and award fees are included
in estimated contract revenue at the time the amounts can be reasonably determined and are
reasonably assured based on historical experience and other objective criteria. Should our
performance under such contracts differ from previous assumptions, current period revenues
would be adjusted.

« Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or estimated market value. Estimated market value is
determined based on assumptions about future demand and market conditions. If actual market
conditions were less favorable than those previously projected by management, inventory write-
downs could be required.

« We record a liability in connection with certain warranty obligations. Our warranty obligations
are affected by product failure rates and material usage and service delivery costs incurred in
correcting a product failure. Should actual product failure rates, material usage or service
delivery costs differ from our estimates, revisions to the estimated warranty liability would be
required.

« We account for income taxes using the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recorded for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. The effect of a tax rate change on deferred tax assets and liabilities is
recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. We record valuation
allowances to reduce net deferred tax assets to the amount considered more likely than not to
be realized. Changes in estimates of future taxable income can materially change the amount of
such valuation allowances.

Consolidated Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
2004 Compared With 2003

Revenues ~ Our consolidated revenues were $675.9 million in 2004, a 16% increase compared to
$581.5 million in 2003. This increase was driven primarily by a $113.0 million revenue growth in our
satellites and related space systems segment, offset partially by a $10.0 million decrease in our
launch vehicles segment (formerly the launch vehicles and advanced programs segment) and a
$7.4 million decrease in the transportation management systems segment. The increase in satellites
and related space systems segment revenues is largely attributable to increased revenues from
science, technology and defense satellite contracts.

Gross Profit - Our consolidated gross profit was $109.1 million in 2004 as compared to
$104.2 million in 2003. Gross profit is affected by a number of factors, including the mix of contract
types and costs incurred thereon in relation to revenues recognized. Such costs include the costs of
personnel, materials, subcontracts and overhead.

The gross profit increase in 2004, as compared to 2003, was driven by a $9.1 million increase in
our satellites and related space systems segment and a $5.6 million improvement in our
transportation management systems segment, partially offset by a $9.8 million decrease in our launch
vehicles segment. The increase in our satellites and related space systems segment was primarily due
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to profit derived from the significant revenue growth in the science, technology and defense satellite
product line, offset by lower profit in the communications satellites product line. The improvement in
our transportation management systems segment was mainly attributable to the absence in 2004 of
cost increases and other charges recorded in 2003 on certain transportation management systems
contracts. The decrease in gross profit in our launch vehicles segment was due to the completion of
certain advanced space flight systems contracts in 2003 and lower profit in our space launch vehicles
product line, offset partially by profit growth from our OBV missile defense interceptor program.

Research and Development Expenses - Research and development expenses are comprised of our
self-funded product research and development activities and exclude direct customer-funded
development activities. Research and development expenses were $6.3 million, or 0.9% of revenues,
and $7.8 million, or 1.3% of revenues, in 2004 and 2003, respectively. These expenses related
primarily to the development of improved launch vehicles and satellites.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses - Selling, general and administrative expenses were
$50.1 million, or 7.4% of revenues, and $57.0 million, or 9.8% of revenues, in 2004 and 2003,
respectively. Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased largely due to a $2.7 million
reduction in bid and proposal costs and $2.1 million of non-recurring litigation expenses in our
transportation management systems segment in 2003. Selling, general and administrative expenses
include the costs of marketing, advertising, promotional and other selling expenses, as well as the
costs of our finance, legal, administrative and general management functions.

Settlement Expense, Net — In 2004, we recorded a $2.5 million gain as a credit to settlement
expense in connection with the sale of senior subordinated notes which we had received in 2003 from
our former affiliate, Orbital Imaging Corporation (“ORBIMAGE”).

In 2003, Orbital recorded $4.8 million of settlement charges in connection with the settlement of
litigation between ORBIMAGE and Orbital. These charges included a $2.3 million delay penalty
related to the OrbView-3 satellite and a $2.5 million litigation settlement payment. Also in 2003, we
recorded a $0.9 million reduction in settlement expense in connection with the settlement of an
action we had brought against certain of our insurers seeking reimbursement for defense and
settlement costs we had incurred several years ago defending a breach of contract lawsuit.

Interest Expense - Interest expense was $11.4 million and $18.7 million in 2004 and 2003,
respectively. Interest expense decreased in 2004 as compared to 2003 primarily as a result of a lower
interest rate on our debt and a reduction in the amortization of debt costs resulting from our
refinancing transactions in the third quarter of 2003.

Other Income, Net — Other income, net, was $2.3 million and $1.3 million in 2004 and 2003,
respectively. Other income, net, included interest income of $2.0 million and $0.7 million in 2004
and 2003, respectively.

Gain on Reversal of Allocated Losses of Affiliate — In 2003, we recorded a $40.6 million gain in
connection with the reversal of our previously recorded liability related to the allocated losses of our
former affiliate, ORBIMAGE. This gain was recorded as a result of the cancellation of our
ownership interest in connection with ORBIMAGE's reorganization in December 2003.

Debt Extinguishment Expense - During 2004, we recorded $2.1 million in debt extinguishment
expenses associated with repurchases of a portion of our 9% senior notes and the replacement of our
bank credit agreement as further described in “Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

In 2003, we recorded $38.8 million in debt extinguishment expenses associated with our debt
refinancing in July 2003 as further described in “Liquidity and Capital Resources.” The debt
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extinguishment expenses consisted of $20.7 million in accelerated amortization of debt discount on
our [2% notes issued in August 2002, $10.1 million in accelerated amortization of debt issuance
costs and $8.0 million in prepayment premiums and other expenses.

Income Taxes -~ The $155.9 million net tax benefit recorded in 2004 was comprised of (i) the
$156.5 million deferred tax benefit in connection with the reversal of the valuation allowance
discussed below and (ii) a $ 0.6 million current provision for 2004 alternative minimum taxes and
state tax obligations. In 2003, the benefit recorded for income taxes was solely attributable to the
refund of state income taxes paid in 2002.

In prior years and until the fourth quarter of 2004, we had recorded a valuation allowance to fully
reserve our net deferred tax assets based on our assessment that the realization of our net deferred
tax assets did not meet the “more likely than not” criterion under SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for
Income Taxes.” As of December 31, 2004 we determined that based upon a number of factors,
including our cumulative taxable income in recent years and our expected profitability in future
years, substantially all of our net deferred tax assets are ‘“‘more likely than not” realizable through
future earnings. Accordingly, as of December 31, 2004 we reversed $212.6 million of our deferred
income tax valuation allowance and recorded (i) a tax benefit of $156.5 million in our consolidated
income statement, (ii) a $39.7 million reduction in goodwill and (iii) a $16.4 million increase to
additional paid-in capital. The portion of the reversal recorded as a reduction in goodwill relates to
valuation allowances established in prior years in connection with business acquisitions. The portion
of the reversal recorded as an increase to additional paid-in capital is primarily related to tax benefits
associated with stock option exercises in 2004 and prior years.

Beginning in 2005, we expect to record income tax provisions on current earnings at an effective
tax rate of approximately 40%. However, as of December 31, 2004, the company had approximately
$560 million of future tax deductions, including nearly $440 million of net operating loss
carryforwards, which will be available to offset future taxable income. Accordingly, on a cash basis,
we expect to pay minimal income taxes in the foreseeable future.

Net Income - Our consolidated net income was $200.0 million, or $3.08 diluted earnings per
share, and $20.2 million, or $0.35 diluted earnings per share, in 2004 and 2003, respectively. The
increase in net income in 2004 consisted of a $24.2 million increase in pretax income, plus the
$156.5 million, or $2.41 per diluted share, income tax benefit in 2004 discussed above.

2003 Compared With 2002

Revenues - Our consolidated revenues were $381.5 million and $551.6 million in 2003 and 2002,
respectively. Consolidated revenues increased in 2003 due to increased revenues in our launch
vehicles segment, partially offset by lower revenues in our satellites and related space systems and
our transportation management systems segments.

Gross Profit — Our consolidated gross profit was $104.2 million and $91.4 million in 2003 and
2002, respectively. Gross profit increased by $16.4 million in our launch vehicles segment and by
$5.7 million in our satellites and related space systems segment, partially offset by a $9.3 million
decrease in gross profit in our transportation management systems segment. The increase in gross
profit in our launch vehicles segment was largely attributable to increased revenues and profit in our
Orbital Boost Vehicle (OBV) missile defense interceptor program and in our space launch vehicle
product line. The increase in gross profit in our satellites and related space systems segment was
largely attributable to increased gross profit from our communications satellites product line. The
decrease in gross profit in our transportation management systems segment was largely attributable to
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significant increases in the first half of 2003 in the estimated costs to complete a number of
contracts.

Research and Development Expenses — Research and development expenses were $7.8 million, or
1.3% of revenues, and $4.7 million, or 0.9% of revenues, in 2003 and 2002, respectively. Research
and development expenses increased primarily as a result of satellite design enhancements and space
launch vehicle development activity.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses — Selling, general and administrative expenses were
$57.0 million, or 9.8% of revenues, and $57.7 million, or 10.5% of revenues, in 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The slight decrease in 2003 was largely due to lower expenses in our satellite
manufacturing business, offset partially by higher general support costs in connection with our OBV
missile defense interceptor program and increased bid and proposal activity. Selling, general and
administrative expenses include the costs of marketing, advertising, promotional and other selling
expenses, as well as the costs of our finance, legal, administrative and general management functions.

Settlement Expense, Net - In 2003, Orbital recorded $4.8 million of settlement charges in
connection with the settlement of litigation between ORBIMAGE and Orbital. These charges
included a $2.3 million delay penalty related to the OrbView-3 satellite and a $2.5 million litigation
settlement payment. Also in 2003, we recorded a $0.9 million reduction of settlement expense in
connection with the settlement of an action we had brought against certain of our insurers seeking
reimbursement for defense and settlement costs we had incurred several years ago defending a
breach of contract lawsuit.

Interest Expense - Interest expense was $18.7 million and $17.5 million for 2003 and 2002,
respectively. Interest expense included $1.8 million and $3.1 million of amortization of debt issuance
costs in 2003 and 2002, respectively. Interest expense in 2003 and 2002 also included $2.2 million
and $1.4 million, respectively, of amortization of debt discount related to our $135 million notes that
were issued in August 2002 and were repurchased or redeemed in full in the third quarter of 2003.

Other Income, Net — Other income, net, was $1.3 million and $2.4 million for 2003 and 2002,
respectively. Interest income and realized gains and losses on investments included in other income
totaled $0.7 million and $1.0 million for 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Gain on Reversal of Allocated Losses of Affiliate — In 2003, we recorded a $40.6 million gain in
connection with the reversal of our previously recorded liability related to the allocated losses of our
former affiliate, ORBIMAGE. This gain was recorded as a result of the cancellation of our
ownership interest in connection with ORBIMAGE’s reorganization in December 2003.

Debt Extinguishment Expense - In 2003, we recorded $38.8 million in debt extinguishment
expenses associated with our debt refinancing in July 2003 as further described in “Liquidity and
Capital Resources.” The debt extinguishment expenses consisted of $20.7 million in accelerated
amortization of debt discount on our 12% notes issued in August 2002, $10.1 million in accelerated
amortization of debt issuance costs and $8.0 million in prepayment premiums and other expenses.

Income Taxes — In 2003, we recorded a $265,000 tax benefit related to the refund of 2002 state
taxes. In 2002, we recorded a $265,000 provision for income taxes in connection with the initial
estimated state income tax liability.

Discontinued Operations - In 2002, we reported $875,000 of net income pertaining to operations
discontinued in previous years.

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting - In connection with our adoption of SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” we recorded a $13.8 million impairment loss in 2002 in our
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transportation management systems segment to write off the remaining net book value of goodwill in
this segment. The impairment loss was determined based on a comparison of the fair value of our
transportation management systems reporting unit to its carrying value, including goodwill. The fair
value of our transportation management systems reporting unit, and the resulting implied fair value
of goodwill, were estimated after consideration of letters of interest in respect of purchase offers
received by us in early 2002 during our attempts to sell the transportation management systems
business. The impairment loss was recorded as a January 1, 2002 cumulative effect of a change in
accounting.

Net Income - Our net income for 2003 was $20.2 million, or $0.35 per diluted share, as compared
to $0.8 million, or $0.02 per share, for 2002. The increase in net income from 2002 to 2003 was
primarily related to increased operating income and the absence in 2003 of the $13.8 million
goodwill impairment charge for 2002 discussed above.

Segment Results

Our products and services are grouped into three reportable segments: (i) launch vehicles
(formerly launch vehicles and advanced programs); (ii) satellites and related space systems; and
(iii) transportation management systems. All of our other activities, as well as consolidating
eliminations and adjustments, are reported in corporate and other.

The following table summarizes revenues and income from operations for our reportable business
segments and corporate and other (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Revenues
Launch Vehicles ..., $323,287  $333,272  $257,851
Satellites and Related Space Systems .............. 331,726 218,679 232,387
Transportation Management Systems............... 29,135 36,571 65,469
Corporate and Other............................. (8,213) (7,022) (4,065)
Total . ... .. $675,935  $581,500  $551,642
Income (Loss) from Operations
Launch Vehicles ..., $ 30,103 $ 32,801 $ 23,643
Satellites and Related Space Systems .............. 21,439 14,555 5,754
Transportation Management Systems............... 1,243 (7,629) 242
Corporate and Other............................. 2,538 (298) (600)
Settlement Expense ......... ..., — (3,871) —
Total. ... ... .. . . . $55323 $ 35,558 § 29,039

2004 Compared With 2003

Launch Vehicles - Launch vehicles segment revenues decreased 3% primarily due to a
$17.0 million decrease in revenues from certain advanced space flight systems contracts that were
completed in 2003 and a $7.3 million decrease in our space launch vehicle product line, offset
partially by a $15.2 million increase in our OBV missile defense interceptor program. The OBV
program to develop and manufacture interceptor boost vehicles for the U.S. Missile Defense
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Agency’s Ground-based Midcourse Defense system under a contract with The Boeing Company
accounted for $176.3 million and $161.1 million in revenues, or 55% and 48% of total segment
revenues in 2004 and 2003, respectively. The decrease in our space launch vehicle product line was
primarily due to lower Pegasus and Taurus program revenues. We completed four Pegasus launches
during 2003 compared to no Pegasus launches in 2004, and we completed one Taurus launch in May
2004 compared to no Taurus launches in 2003. The reduction in launch vehicle program activity in
2004 was partially offset by a $2.0 million early termination fee recognized in connection with a
Taurus contract that was cancelled by the customer in December 2004 due to a change in the
customer’s plans prior to our commencing any significant work on the contract. Revenues in our
target vehicle product line were relatively unchanged in 2004 as compared to 2003.

Operating income decreased 8% due to the completion of certain advanced space flight systems
contracts in 2003 and lower profit in our space launch vehicles product line, offset partially by
increased income from our OBV missile defense interceptor program. Operating income from our
OBV missile defense interceptor program was $20.6 million in 2004, or 68% of total segment
income, compared to $17.2 million, or 52% of total segment income, in 2003. Our space launch
vehicle product line operating income decreased due to lower program activity, as discussed above,
and significant cost growth in 2004 on a Pegasus contract and a Taurus contract, offset partially by
the $2.0 contract termination fee discussed above. Operating income in our target vehicle product
line was relatively unchanged in 2004 compared to 2003. The segment’s total operating margin (as a
percentage of revenues) was 9.3% in 2004 compared to 9.8% in 2003.

Satellites and Related Space Systems - Satellites and related space systems segment revenues
increased 52% primarily as a result of revenue growth of $121.1 million in our science, technology
and defense satellite product line and $4.5 million from technical services, offset partially by an
$11.9 million revenue reduction in our communications satellites product line. The revenue increase
in our science, technology and defense satellite product line was primarily due to $81.7 million in
revenues from defense-related contracts awarded in 2004 and late 2003, together with 2004 revenue
growth of $27.0 million from the Dawn interplanetary mission contract with NASA and $9.9 million
from a new NASA scientific satellite contract started late in 2003. Revenues decreased $11.9 million
to $91.2 million in our communications satellites product line primarily as a result of the completion
of the BSAT-2¢ and PanAmSat Galaxy-XII satellites in 2003 and lower program activity in 2004 on
the TELKOM satellite contract during 2004, partially offset by revenues from a new contract for two
communications satellites awarded in late 2003.

Operating income increased by 47% largely as a result of a $12.6 million increase in profits derived
from the revenue growth in the science, technology and defense satellite product line, partially offset
by a $5.1 million decrease in profits in our communications satellites product line. The decrease in
communications satellites income in 2004 was primarily attributable to the completion and launch of
the BSAT-2c satellite and the receipt of a $2.0 million fee associated with the cancellation of a
contract in 2003 and an operating loss in 2004 on the new contract awarded in late 2003. These
negative factors were partially offset by favorable profit adjustments on certain other communications
satellites contracts. The profit growth in the science, technology and defense satellite product line
reflects the revenue growth in this product line in addition to the absence in 2004 of $4.5 million of
charges recorded in 2003 for increases in the costs to complete the OrbView-3 satellite contract.
This segment’s operating margin (as a percentage of revenues) was 6.5% in 2004 compared to 6.7%
in 2003.

Transportation Management Systems - Transportation management systems segment revenues
decreased 20% largely due to a reduction in activity on a contract that was substantially completed in
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the third quarter of 2004. This was partially offset by a $2.7 million favorable revenue adjustment on
a previously suspended contract that was renegotiated and resumed in the third quarter of 2004.

Operating results improved from a $7.6 million loss in 2003 to $1.2 million income in 2004. This
improvement was primarily attributable to charges in 2003 that did not recur in 2004 and a
$1.4 million favorable operating income adjustment in 2004 from the resumed contract mentioned
above. The 2003 charges included $1.4 million of inventory-related charges, $2.1 million of non-
recurring litigation expenses and $5.0 million of unfavorable adjustments as a result of cost increases
on a number of contracts.

Corporate and Other - Corporate and other revenues are comprised solely of the elimination of
intercompany revenues.

Corporate and other operating income in 2004 is comprised solely of the first quarter 2004 gain on
the sale of notes received from ORBIMAGE discussed above. In 2003, corporate and other
operating results included $4.8 million of settlement expense discussed in “Consolidated Results of
Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.”

2003 Compared With 2002

Launch Vehicles - Revenues increased 29% in 2003 as compared to 2002 in large part as a result
of increased revenues in our OBV miissile defense interceptor program. The OBV program accounted
for $161.1 million in revenues, or 48% of total segment revenues in 2003, as compared to
$119.4 million, or 46%, in 2002. Our space launch vehicle product line also contributed to the year-
over-year increase in revenues, largely due to increased Pegasus launch vehicle activity and work on
a contract begun in 2003 to build three Minotaur space launch vehicles for the U.S. Department of
Defense. We completed four successful Pegasus launches during 2003 compared to one Pegasus
launch in 2002. Higher revenues from our advanced programs in 2003 likewise contributed to
increased segment revenues. These revenue increases were offset partially by decreased revenues in
our target vehicle product line, which had fewer launches in 2003 than in 2002.

Operating income increased approximately 39% in 2003 as compared to 2002 primarily due to the
increased profits from the OBV missile defense interceptor program, our advanced programs and our
space launch vehicle product line. Operating income from the OBV missile defense interceptor
program accounted for approximately half of the total operating profit in this segment in 2003. The
increase in our advanced programs was largely attributable to a favorable contract close-out. The
increase in operating income in our space launch vehicle product line for 2003 versus 2002 was
largely attributable to increased operating income from Pegasus launch vehicle programs, partially
offset by a decrease in operating income from a Taurus program. The Taurus program experienced
significant cost increases and a schedule delay in the fourth quarter of 2003. The operating margin in
this segment (as a percentage of revenues) was 9.8% in 2003 compared to 9.2% in 2002.

Satellites and Related Space Systems - Revenues from satellites and related space systems
decreased approximately 6% in 2003 compared to 2002 primarily due to a decline in revenues from
our communications satellites product line and our technical services business, offset partially by
increased revenues from our science, technology and defense satellite product line. Our communica-
tions satellites product line revenues were $103.1 million in 2003 as compared to $135.2 million in
2002. This decrease in the product line’s revenues was primarily attributable to lower revenues on
our PanAmSat contract, which was approximately 80% complete as of year-end 2002, and the
absence in 2003 of revenues from the N-STARCc satellite that was completed in mid-2002. This
decline was offset partially by increased revenue on our TELKOM satellite contract order received in
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the second half of 2002. The increase in our science, technology and defense satellite product line
revenues was largely attributable to work on two new scientific satellite contracts begun during 2002.

Operating income increased from $5.8 million to $14.6 million, or 153%, in 2003 as compared to
2002 largely as a result of improved operating results in the communications satellites product line
which were attributable primarily to increased profits from our BSAT-2¢c and TELKOM satellite
contracts and the absence in 2003 of a loss from the N-STARc satellite that was launched in mid-
2002. Also contributing to the increase in operating income in this segment was higher operating
income In our science, technology and defense satellite product line, primarily attributable to income
from two new scientific satellite contracts begun during 2002. In addition, operating income for 2003
included three transactions that largely offset each other. First, we recorded charges totaling
$4.5 million for increases in the costs to complete the OrbView-3 satellite contract. Second, during
2003 we received a $2.0 million fee associated with the cancellation of a communications satellites
contract. The contract was executed in early 2002 and the customer cancelled the contract in March
2003 as a result of changes to the customer’s strategy and plans prior to the commencement of any
work on this satellite. Third, we recorded $1.8 million proceeds received in connection with a
litigation settlement as a reduction in operating expense. The litigation settlement resulted in an
approximately $1.2 million improvement in operating income in 2003, after considering the impact of
the settlement on contract profits on a percentage-of-completion basis. The operating margin in this
segment (as a percentage of revenues) improved to 6.7% in 2003 as compared to 2.5% for 2002.

Transportation Management Systems — Revenues in our transportation management systems
segment decreased approximately 44% in 2003 as compared to 2002 primarily due to a reduction in
activity on several contracts that were nearing completion at the end of 2003, offset partially by
increased revenue on one current contract.

Our transportation management systems segment reported a $7.6 million loss in 2003 compared to
operating income of $0.2 million in 2002. The operating loss in 2003 included $1.4 million of
inventory-related charges, $2.1 million of non-recurring litigation expenses and $5.0 million of
unfavorable adjustments as a result of cost increases on a number of contracts.

Corporate and Other -~ Corporate and other revenues are comprised solely of the elimination of
intercompany revenues. Corporate and other expenses include corporate general and administrative
activities that are not attributable to or allocated to the operating segments, as well as consolidating
adjustments for intercompany contracts.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Flow from Operating Activities — Cash flow from operating activities in 2004 was
$67.0 million as compared to $46.5 million in 2003 and negative $29.8 million in 2002. The net cash
flow provided by operating activities in 2004 was primarily attributable to cash generated from
continuing operations. The increase in 2004 as compared to 2003 was primarily attributable to, and
consistent with, the year-over-year growth in operating results excluding the impact of significant
nonrecurring non-cash transactions.

The net cash flow provided by operating activities in 2003 was primarily attributable to cash
generated from operations together with a $23.8 million increase in accounts payable and accrued
liabilities, offset partially by a $14.3 million increase in receivables and an $11.8 million reduction in
deferred revenues. In addition, cash flow from continuing operations in 2003 included a $38.8 million
add-back to, and a $40.6 million subtraction from, net income from continuing operations associated
with debt extinguishment expenses and the reversal of allocated losses of affiliate, respectively.
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In 2002, we reported a $29.8 million net use of cash for continuing operations that was primarily
attributable to cash used to fund our operations together with a reduction in accounts payable. The
reduction in accounts payable was largely attributable to the payment of a $48.8 million vendor
financing obligation.

Cash Flow from Investing Activities - In 2004, we spent $14.3 million for capital expenditures and
we reduced restricted cash by $10.9 million. Restricted cash was primarily associated with letters of
credit issued by financial institutions on our behalf. These transactions resulted in a net $3.4 million
use of cash for investing activities.

In 2003, we spent $9.6 million for capital expenditures and we increased restricted cash by
$9.0 million. These uses of cash were partially offset by a $3.0 million cash receipt from an escrow
account related to the sale of a previously divested business, resulting in a net $15.6 million use of
cash for investing activities.

In 2002, we reported a net $14.3 million use of cash for investing activities, comprised of
$15.3 million for capital expenditures, partially offset by $1.0 million received from an escrow
account related to the sale of a previously divested business.

Cash Flow from Financing Activities - In 2004, we received $18.1 million from issuances of
common stock primarily in connection with stock option and warrant exercises. During 2004, we
received $11.5 million from the exercise of 2.4 million common stock warrants, with an exercise
price of $4.82 per share, that had originally been issued in 2001. A total of 2.1 million warrants
expired unexercised on August 31, 2004.

During 2004, we repurchased and retired 595,000 shares of our common stock for $7.0 million.
We also repurchased and cancelled $8.6 million of our 9% senior notes at a cost of $9.6 million, and
we expended $0.4 million to obtain a new credit facility discussed below.

In December 2004, we replaced our previous $50.0 million revolving line of credit with a new five-
year $50.0 million revolving credit facility (the “Revolver”) with Bank of America serving as the
lead arranger in the syndicated line of credit. We have the option to increase the amount of the
Revolver by up to $25 million to the extent that any one or more lenders commits to be a lender for
such amount. Loans under the Revolver bear interest at LIBOR plus a margin ranging from 1.5% to
2.25%, or at a prime rate plus a margin ranging from zero to 0.75%, with the applicable margin in
each case varying according to our ratio of total debt to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortization. The Revolver is collateralized by our intellectual property and accounts receivable.
Up to $40.0 million of the Revolver may be reserved for letters of credit. As of December 31, 2004,
there were no borrowings under the Revolver, although $6.4 million of letters of credit were issued
under the Revolver. Accordingly, as of December 31, 2004, $43.6 million of the Revolver was
available for borrowing.

In 2003, we used $147.0 million to pay long-term debt obligations and we received $129.0 million
net proceeds from issuances of long-term debt, primarily associated with the July 2003 financing
transactions described below. In addition, we received $4.6 million net proceeds from issuances of
common stock in connection with stock purchases from employees under our employee stock
purchase plan and from the exercise of stock options and warrants.

In July 2003, we closed two financing transactions. In the first transaction, we issued
$135.0 million of 9% senior notes due 2011 with interest payable semi-annually each January 15 and
July 15, starting in 2004. During the third quarter of 2003, we used the net proceeds from this
offering, together with available cash on hand, to repurchase or redeem all of our $135.0 million 12%
Second Priority Secured Notes due 2006. In the second transaction, we replaced our previous
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$35.0 million revolving line of credit with a $50.0 million revolving line of credit that was
subsequently replaced in December 2004, as described above.

In 2002, we received $145.5 million in net proceeds from issuances of long-term debt and warrants
and $7.6 million from issuances of common stock, and we expended $128.7 million in principal
payments on long-term debt. The net proceeds from issuances of long-term debt and warrants
included $123.1 million in net proceeds from our sale of notes and warrants in August 2002 and
$22.4 million in net proceeds from a term loan. Principal payments on long-term debt consisted
primarily of the prepayment of a $25.0 million term loan and our $100.0 million 5% subordinated
convertible notes, which were due in 2002, and $3.7 million of principal payments on capital leases
and other debt. The cash received from the issuances of shares of common stock was attributable to
issuances under our employee stock purchase plan and the exercise of stock options and warrants.

The existing senior notes and the Revolver contain covenants limiting our ability to, among other
things, incur more debt, pay cash dividends, make investments, redeem or repurchase Orbital stock,
enter into transactions with affiliates, merge or consolidate with others and dispose of assets or create
liens on assets. In addition, the Revolver contains financial covenants with respect to leverage,
secured leverage, fixed charge coverage, consolidated net worth and the ratio of accounts receivable
to senior secured indebtedness. As of December 31, 2004, the company was in compliance with all
of these covenants.

During 2003, we entered into an eight-year interest rate swap agreement with a financial
institution on a notional amount of $50.0 million, whereby we receive fixed-rate interest of 9% in
exchange for variable interest payments. The interest rate is reset quarterly and is equal to the 3-
month LIBOR rate plus 4.28%. The total variable interest rate was 6.35% at December 31, 2004.
This arrangement has been designated an effective fair value hedge of $50.0 million of our 9% senior
notes due 2011. As of December 31, 2004, the fair value of the interest rate swap was $1.8 million,
which was recorded as a non-current asset with an equal increase in long-term debt on the
consolidated balance sheet.

The following table sets forth our long-term obligations, excluding capital lease obligations
(in thousands):

December 31,

2004 2003
9% senior notes, interest due semi-annually, principal due in
July 2011, oo $126,425  $135,000
Interest rate swap fair value hedge adjustment on $50 million of
0% SEMIOT MOLES . « o v ottt e et et e 1,844 1,847

128,269 136,847
Less current portion. ...ttt — —

Long-term portion . ...... ... ..ottt $128,269  $136,847

The fair value of our senior notes at December 31, 2004 and 2003 was estimated at $142.5 million
and $145.1 million, respectively, based on market trading activity.

Available Cash and Future Funding - At December 31, 2004, we had $125.5 million of
unrestricted cash and cash equivalents. Management believes that available cash, cash expected to be
generated from operations and borrowing capacity under the Revolver will be sufficient to fund our
operating and capital expenditure requirements in the foreseeable future. However, there can be no
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assurance that this will be the case. Our ability to borrow additional funds is limited by the terms of
our outstanding debt. Additionally, significant unforeseen events such as termination of major orders
or late delivery or failure of launch vehicle or satellite products could adversely affect our liquidity
and results of operations.

Aggregate Contractual Obligations

The following summarizes Orbital’s contractual obligations at December 31, 2004, both on- and
off-balance sheet, and the effect such obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flow
in future periods (in millions):

Payments Due by Period
Lessthan 1to3 3toS5 More than

Total 1 Year Years  Years 5 Years
Long-term debt ................. $128.3 $ — $ — § — $128.3
Capital leases .. ................. 0.3 0.2 0.1 — —
Operating leases(1) .............. 129.6 15.9 27.1 24.8 61.8
Purchase obligations(2) .......... 138.8 1327 6.1 — —
Other long-term liabilities. ........ 0.2 0.2 — — -
Total ... .. $397.2 $149.0 $333  $24.8 $190.1

(1) Our obligations under operating leases consist of minimum rental commitments under non-
cancelable operating leases primarily for office space and equipment.

(2) Purchase obligations consist of open purchase orders that we issued to acquire materials, parts
or services in future periods.

Occasionally, certain contracts require us to post letters of credit supporting our performance and
refund obligations under the contracts. We had $14.7 million of letters of credit outstanding at
December 31, 2004, of which $8.3 million was collateralized by our restricted cash and $6.4 million
was issued under the Revolver.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We believe that we do not have any material off-balance sheet arrangements, as defined by
applicable securities regulations, that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect
on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations,
liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In December 2004, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123(R),
“Share-Based Payment,” was issued. SFAS No. 123(R) amends SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation,” to require companies to recognize as expense the fair value of all
employee stock-based awards, including stock option grants. We expect to adopt SFAS No. 123(R)
on July 1, 2005, using the modified prospective application method, as defined by SFAS
No. 123(R). We are currently assessing the expected impact on our consolidated 2005 financial
statements and the anticipated changes to our compensation strategies, if any, including our stock
option and incentive plan, described more fully in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements
included herein.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

At December 31, 2004, we had total receivables of approximately $4.3 million denominated in
Japanese yen and $3.7 million denominated in Singapore dollars.

From time to time, we enter into forward exchange contracts to hedge against foreign currency
fluctuations on receivables denominated in foreign currency. At December 31, 2004, we had no
foreign currency forward exchange contracts.

The fair market value of our outstanding 9% senior notes due 2011 was estimated at approximately
$142.5 million at December 31, 2004, based on market trading activity.

During 2003, we entered into an eight-year interest rate swap agreement with a financial
institution on a notional amount of $50.0 million, whereby we receive fixed-rate interest of 9% in
exchange for variable interest payments. The interest rate is reset quarterly and is equal to the 3-
month LIBOR rate plus 4.28%. The total variable interest rate was 6.35% at December 31, 2004.
This arrangement has been designated an effective fair value hedge of $50.0 million of our 9% senior
notes due 2011. As of December 31, 2004, the fair value of the interest rate swap was $1.8 million,
which was recorded as a non-current asset with an equal increase in long-term debt on the
consolidated balance sheet.

We have an unfunded deferred compensation plan for senior managers and executive officers with
a total liability balance of $4.9 million at December 31, 2004. This liability is subject to fluctuation
based upon the market value of certain investment securities selected by participants to measure the
market fluctuations and to measure our liability to each participant.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Orbital Sciences Corporation:

We have completed an integrated audit of the 2004 consolidated financial statements of Orbital
Sciences Corporation and of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 and
audits of its 2003 and 2002 consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our audits,
are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Orbital Sciences Corporation and its
subsidiaries at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the
financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index presents fairly, in all material respects,
the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
and financial statement schedule based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements
in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial
statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2002 the Company changed its
method of accounting for goodwill to conform to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A, that the Company maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 based on criteria established in
Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria.
Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal
Control - Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. The Company’s management is responsible
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on
management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
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whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An
audit of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control and performing such other procedures as we
consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Mclean, Virginia
March 4, 2005
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ORBITAL SCIENCES CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share data)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

ReVENUES . . . o $675,935  $581,500 $551,642
Costsof goods sold .. .. .. it 566,787 477,273 460,231
Gross profit. . ... ... . . 109,148 104,227 91,411
Research and development eXpenses . ............. v iiivunnnnnan.. 6,311 7,835 4,671
Selling, general and administrative eXpenses...............ccoveeiinn... 50,052 56,963 57,701
Settlement expense, Net. ... ...ttt (2,538) 3,871 —
Income from operations ................. ... ... . ... ... 55,323 35,558 29,039
Interest €XpPensSe . ... e (11,386)  (18,683)  (17,450)
Other INCOME, MEt .. .. . i i et e et e e 2,290 1,347 2,361
Gain on reversal of allocated losses of affiliate .. ....................... — 40,586 —
Debt extinguishment eXpense ...........covirniiiniieiinnennn.. (2,099) (38,836) —
Income before income taxes . ... ... 44,128 19,972 13,950
Benefit from (provision for) income taxes ............................ 155,872 265 (265)
Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of '

change in accounting. . ........ ... ... ... ... .. .. . e 200,000 20,237 13,685
Discontinued operations — gain on disposal ........................... — — 875
Cumulative effect of change in accounting . ........................... — — (13,795)
Net INCOME . . ..o $200,000 $ 20,237 § 765
Basic earnings per share:

Income from continuing operations .............. . ... i, $ 403 $ 043 $ 031

Income from discontinued operations ............... ... ... ..oii.... — — 0.02

Cumulative effect of change in accounting .......................... — — (0.31)

Nt INCOMIE . .. it e e e e $ 403 $ 043 $ 0.02
Diluted earnings per share:

Income from continuing operations .............. ... $ 308 § 035 § 030

Income from discontinued operations ................. ..., — — 0.02

Cumulative effect of change in accounting.......................... — — (0.30)

NEtINCOME . vttt et $ 308 § 035 § 002

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ORBITAL SCIENCES CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

December 31,

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents .......... .. . i
Restricted cash ... ... . e
Receivables, Met. ... . i e e e
INVENIOMIES, MOt . .\ ottt ettt ettt e e e e e
Deferred Income taxes, Net ... ..ottt e
Other CUITENT @SSBTS & o\ ittt ettt ettt et e e ettt a e

Total CUITENt ASSEtS . . .ottt e e e e e e e

Property, plant and equipment, NEt. ... ... .. ittt e e
GoodWill . ... e
Deferred InCome taxes, MEt . . ...ttt e e e e
Other NON-CUITENTt ASSEIS . ...\ttt ittt et e ie ettt ia e

T 0ta] ASSEES .« ottt e e e e e

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Short-term borrowings and current portion of long-term obligations ..............
Accounts payable ... ...
ACCTUEA EXPENSES . .\ ottt e e e e e
Deferred revenues . ... ... i e e

Total current Habilities . . .. oottt e e

Long-term obligations, net of current portion ............ ...t
Other non-current liabilities . . .. .. .. ... i i e
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ Equity:

Preferred Stock, par value $.01; 10,000,000 shares authorized, none outstanding . . ..

Common Stock, par value $.01; 200,000,000 shares authorized, 52,823,032 and
48,072,580 shares outstanding, respectively ......... ... il

Additional paid-in capital . ........ ...
Deferred compensation . .. ....ou ittt e e
Accumulated deficit . ... .. . e

Total stockholders’ equity. ... ... ..ot i
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity .......... ... ... i.t.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2004 2003
$125,504  $ 60,900
8,315 19,258
149,480 149,508
13,565 12,642
26710 —
3,880 5,496
327.454 247,804
83.154 82,364
55,551 95,293
185.940 —
11,671 13,839
$663.770  $439,300
$ 161 § 297
30,740 24,841
90,714 91,185
19,478 16,292
141,093 132,615
128,375 137,116
178 2,692
528 480
618,232 591,482
(53) (502)
(224,583)  (424,583)
394,124 166,877
$663,770  $439,300




ORBITAL SCIENCES CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(In thousands)
Additional

_Common Stock Paid-In Deferred Accumulated
Shares  Amount Capital Compensation Deficit Total
Balance, December 31,2001 ................ 41,241 $412 $539,458 $ — $(445,585) § 94,285
Shares issued to employees, officers and
directors .. ..ot 3,834 39 15,340 — — 15,379
Shares issued for litigation settlement ... ... 300 3 1,000 — — 1,003
Warrants issued, net of issuance costs ...... — —_ 22,306 — — 22,306
Warrants exercised . ....... ... ... 36 — 123 — — 123
Issuance of restricted stock ............... 200 2 1,058 (1,060) — —
Amortization of deferred compensation . . . .. — — — 707 — 707
Netincome ......... i, — = — — 765 765
Balance, December 31,2002 ................ 45,611 456 579,285 (353) (444,820) 134,568
Shares issued to employees, officers and
directors ..o 2,140 21 10,401 — — 10,422
Warrants exercised ........... ... ... ... 122 1 436 — —_ 437
Issuance of restricted stock ............... 200 2 1,360 (1,362) — —
Amortization of deferred compensation ... .. — — — 1,213 — 1,213
Netincome ......... . i, — — — — 20,237 20,237
Balance, December 31,2003 ................ 48,073 480 591,482 (502) (424,583) 166,877
Shares issued to employees, officers and
directors ... o 1,260 13 5,915 — — 5,928
Warrants exercised .......... ... .. ...... 4,085 41 11,392 — —_ 11,433
Repurchases of common stock ............ (595) (6) (6,994) — — (7,000)
Amortization of deferred compensation . .. .. — — — 449 — 449
Tax benefit of stock-based compensation . . .. — — 16,437 — — 16,437
Netincome ..., — - — — 200,000 200,000
Balance, December 31,2004 ................ 52,823 $528 $618,232 $ (53) $(224,583) $394,124

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ORBITAL SCIENCES CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

Operating Activities:
Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of change
inaccounting ............ ... $200,000 $ 20,237 $§ 13,685
Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing operations to net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization eXpense ............cooveuneeen... 15,009 16,008 15,149
Deferred income taxes . ......... . i (156,471) — —
Amortization of debt costs ... ... ... 860 4,056 4,459
Gain on reversal of allocated losses of affiliate . .................. — (40,586) —
Debt extinguishment expense ............cov v, 2,099 38,836 —
Stock-based compensation and contributions to defined contribution
planand other. ....... ... ... . . . . (318) 7,280 8,277
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables .. ... .ot 28 (14,332} (9,692)
InVentories. . . o oot e (923) 4,494 2,648
Other S80S v it 1,370 (355) (2,743)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses .. .......... ... 4,672 23,837 (64,459)
Deferred reVenuUe . ...ttt 3,186 (11,802) 4,208
Other liabilities. . ....... ... ... . . . (2,514) (1,199) (1,380)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ............ 66,998 46,474 (29,848)
Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures. . ... i (14,340) (9,578) (15,341)
Escrow proceeds received related to former business disposition .. . ... _ 3,000 1,000
Decrease (increase) in cash restricted for letters of credit, net ....... 10,941 (9,016) —
Net cash used in investing activities ....................... {3,399) {15,594) {14,341)
Financing Activities:
Principal payments on long-term obligations and other.............. (10,109)  (146,952)  (128,729)
Net proceeds from issuances of long-term obligations............... — 128,962 145,502
Repurchase of common stock .. ............ ..., (7,000) — —
Net proceeds from issuances of common stock .................... 18,114 4,570 7,641
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities........... 1,005 (13,420) 24,414
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .............. .. 64,604 17,460 (19,775)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ....................... 60,900 43,440 63,215
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ............................ $125,504 $§ 60900 $ 43,440

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ORBITAL SCIENCES CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Business Operations

Orbital Sciences Corporation (together with its subsidiaries, “Orbital” or the “company”), a
Delaware corporation, develops and manufactures small rockets and space systems for commercial,
military and civil government customers. The company’s primary products are satellites and launch
vehicles, including low-orbit, geosynchronous and planetary spacecraft for communications, remote
sensing, scientific and defense missions; ground- and air-launched rockets that deliver satellites into
orbit; and missile defense systems that are used as interceptor and target vehicles. Orbital also offers
space-related technical services to government agencies and develops and builds satellite-based
transportation management systems for public transit agencies and private vehicle fleet operators.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Orbital and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the company had no partially owned subsidiaries.
All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions,
including estimates of future contract costs and earnings. Such estimates and assumptions affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and earnings during the current reporting period. Management
periodically assesses and evaluates the adequacy and/or deficiency of estimated liabilities recorded
for various reserves, liabilities, contract risks and uncertainties. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.

All financial amounts are stated in U.S. dollars unless otherwise indicated.

Revenue Recognition

Orbital’s revenue is derived primarily from long-term contracts. Revenues on cost-reimbursable
contracts are recognized to the extent of costs incurred plus a proportionate amount of fee earned.
Revenues on long-term fixed-price contracts are generally recognized using the percentage-of-
completion method of accounting. Such revenues are recorded based on the percentage that costs
incurred to date bear to the most recent estimates of total costs to complete each contract.
Estimating future costs and, therefore, revenues and profits, is a process requiring a high degree of
management judgment, including management’s assumptions regarding future operations of Orbital
as well as general economic conditions. In the event of a change in total estimated contract cost or
profit, the cumulative effect of such change is recorded in the period the change in estimate occurs.
Frequently, the period of performance of a contract extends over a long period of time and, as such,
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revenue recognition and the company’s profitability from a particular contract may be adversely
affected to the extent that estimated cost to complete or incentive or award fee estimates are revised,
delivery schedules are delayed or progress under a contract is otherwise impeded. Accordingly, the
company’s recorded revenues and gross profits from period to period can fluctuate significantly. In
the event cost estimates indicate a loss on a contract, the total amount of such loss, excluding
general and administrative expenses, is recorded in the period in which the loss is first estimated.

Certain contracts include incentive provisions for increased or decreased revenue and profit based
on actual performance against established targets. Incentive and award fees are included in estimated
contract revenue at the time the amounts can be reasonably determined and are reasonably assured
based upon historical experience and other objective criteria. Should Orbital’s performance under
such contracts differ from previous assumptions, current period revenues would be adjusted.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Major improvements are capitalized while
expenditures for maintenance, repairs and minor improvements are charged to expense. When assets
are retired or otherwise disposed of, the assets and related accumulated depreciation and
amortization are eliminated from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in
operations. Depreciation expense is determined using the straight-line method based on the following
useful lives:

Buildings . .......... ... ... il 20 years
Machinery, equipment and software ....... 3 to 12 years
Leasehold improvements. ................ Shorter of estimated useful life or lease term

Recoverability of Long-Lived Assets

Orbital’s policy is to evaluate its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. When an
evaluation indicates that an asset impairment has occurred, a loss is recognized and the asset is
adjusted to its estimated fair value. Given the inherent technical and commercial risks within the
aerospace industry, combined with the special purpose use of certain of the company’s assets, future
impairment charges could be required if the company were to change its current expectation that it
will recover the carrying amount of its long-lived assets from future operations.

Income Taxes

Orbital accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method. Under this method,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded for the estimated future tax consequences attributable
to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected
to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. The effect of a tax rate change on deferred tax assets and liabilities is
recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. The company records valuation
allowances to reduce net deferred tax assets to the amount considered more likely than not to be
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realized. Changes in estimates of future taxable income can materially change the amount of such
valuation allowances.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated using the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding during the periods. Diluted earnings per share include the weighted-average effect of all
dilutive securities outstanding during the periods. Diluted per share loss is the same as basic per
share loss when there is a loss from continuing operations.

The following table presents the shares used in computing basic and diluted earnings per share (in
thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

Weighted average of outstanding shares for basic earnings

pershare ....... .. . ... 49,658 46,718 43,908
Dilutive effect of outstanding stock options .............. 2,441 1,641 718
Dilutive effect of outstanding stock warrants............. 12,798 9,742 311
Dilutive effect of restricted stock ...................... 125 120 —
Shares for diluted earnings per share ................... 65,022 58,221 44,937

In 2004, diluted weighted-average shares outstanding excluded the effect of 2.0 million stock
options that were anti-dilutive. In 2003, diluted weighted-average shares outstanding excluded the
effect of 2.3 million stock options that were anti-dilutive. In 2002, diluted weighted-average shares
outstanding excluded the effect of 3.4 million stock options and 16.5 million warrants that were anti-
dilutive.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term, highly liquid investments with
maturities of 90 days or less.

Inventories

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or estimated market value. Estimated market value is
determined based on assumptions about future demand and market conditions. If actual market
conditions were less favorable than those previously projected by management, inventory write-downs
could be required.

Self-Constructed Assets

The company self-constructs some of its ground and airborne support and special test equipment
utilized in the manufacture, production and delivery of some of its products. Orbital capitalizes
direct costs incurred in constructing such equipment and certain allocated indirect costs. Capitalized
costs generally include direct software coding costs and certain allocated indirect costs.
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Goodwill

Goodwill represents costs in excess of fair values assigned to the underlying net assets of acquired
companies. The company adopted SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” effective
January 1, 2002. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, goodwill amortization was discontinued as of
January 1, 2002 and instead is tested at least annually for impairment using an estimation of the fair
value of the reporting unit that the goodwill is attributable to.

In connection with the adoption of SFAS No. 142 in 2002, the company completed its assessment
of goodwill impairment and as a result recorded a $13.8 million impairment loss in its transportation
management systems segment to write off the remaining net book value of goodwill in this segment.
The impairment loss was determined based on a comparison of the fair value of the company’s
transportation management systems reporting unit to its carrying value, including goodwill. The fair
value of the company’s transportation management systems reporting unit, and the resulting implied
fair value of goodwill, were estimated after consideration of letters of interest in respect of purchase
offers received by the company in early 2002 during its attempts to sell the transportation
management systems business. The impairment loss was recorded as a January 1, 2002 cumulative
effect of a change in accounting.

Deferred Revenue

The company occasionally receives cash advances and payments from customers in excess of
revenues recognized on certain contracts. These advances and payments are reported as deferred
revenues on the balance sheet.

Comprehensive Income

Orbital’s comprehensive income in the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was equal
to net income. Accumulated other comprehensive income as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
was $0.

Financial Instruments

Orbital occasionally uses forward contracts and interest rate swaps to manage certain foreign
currency and interest rate exposures, respectively. Derivative instruments, such as forward contracts
and interest rate swaps, are viewed as risk management tools by Orbital and are not used for trading
or speculative purposes. Derivatives used for hedging purposes must be designated and effective as a
hedge of the identified risk exposure at the inception of the contract. Accordingly, changes in fair
value of the derivative contract must be highly correlated with changes in the fair value of the
underlying hedged item at inception of the hedge and over the life of the hedge contract. All
derivative instruments are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. The ineffective portion of all
hedges, if any, is recognized currently in earnings.

Research and Development Expenses

Expenditures for company-sponsored research and development projects are expensed as incurred.
Customer-sponsored research and development projects performed under contracts are accounted for
as contract costs as the work is performed.
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Stock-Based Compensation and New Accounting Pronouncement

In December 2004, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123(R),
“Share-Based Payment,” was issued. SFAS No. 123(R) amends SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation,” to require companies to recognize as expense the fair value of all
employee stock-based awards, including stock option grants. The company expects to adopt SFAS
No. 123(R) on July 1, 2005, using the modified prospective application method, as defined under
SFAS No. 123(R). The company is currently assessing the expected impact on its consolidated 2005
financial statements and the anticipated changes to its compensation strategies, if any, including its
stock option and incentive plan, described more fully in Note 8.

Through December 31, 2004, the company applied the provisions of SFAS No. 123, as amended
by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure, an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 123.” Under those provisions, the company has provided pro
forma net income and earnings per share disclosures for its employee stock option grants as if the
fair-value-based method defined in SFAS No. 123 had been applied (see below). The company has
not recorded any compensation cost associated with stock options issued to date since all such
options had an exercise price equal to the market value of the company’s common stock on the date
of grant.

The company used the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to determine the pro forma impact
under SFAS Nos. 123 and 148 on the company’s net income and earnings per share. The model
utilizes certain information, such as the interest rate on a risk-free security maturing generally at the
same time as the option being valued, and requires certain assumptions, such as the expected
amount of time an option will be outstanding until it is exercised or it expires, to calculate the fair
value of stock options granted. This information and the assumptions used for 2004, 2003 and 2002
are summarized as follows:

2004 2003 2002
Additional shares authorized for grant at
December 31 ....... ... .. ... . i, 536,670 1,535,279 4,101,991
Volatility .. ... 64% 66% 67%
Risk-free interest rate ......................... 3.06% 1.7% 3.9%

Weighted-average fair value per share at grant date $ 494 § 335 % 5.31
Expected dividend yield ............ e — — —
Average expected life of options (years) ......... 25-45 4.5 4.5
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The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the company had
applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to its stock option plan (in thousands,

except per share amounts):

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002

$20,237 8 765

(4,464) (3,466)

$15,773  $(2,701)

2004

Net income, asreported. . . ........c.oviiiiineinn.... $200,000
Deduct: Net stock-based employee compensation expense

determined under fair value based method ........... (6,673)
Pro forma net income (loss) .................c....... $193,327
Net income (loss) per share:

Basic —asreported ......... .. ..., $ 4.03

Basic —proforma .............. ... i, $ 3.89

Diluted —as reported. . ............ i $ 3.08

Diluted —proforma.................ccoviininnnn. $ 297

$ 043 $ 0.02
$ 034 $ (0.06)
$ 035 $ 0.02
$ 027 $ (0.06)

Pro forma net income (loss) reflects only options granted through 2004 and, therefore, may not be

representative of the effects for future periods.

2. Industry Segment Information

Orbital’s products and services are grouped into three reportable segments: (i) launch vehicles
(formerly launch vehicles and advanced programs); (ii) satellites and related space systems; and
(iii) transportation management systems. Reportable segments are generally organized based upon
product lines. Corporate office expenses that have not been attributed to a particular segment, as well
as consolidating eliminations and adjustments, are reported in corporate and other.

Intersegment sales are generally negotiated and accounted for under terms and conditions that are
similar to other commercial and government contracts. Substantially all of the company’s assets and

operations are located within the United States.
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The following table presents operating information and identifiable assets by reportable segment
(in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

_ 2004 2003 2002
Launch Vehicles:
Revenues ... $323,287  $333,272  $257,851
Operating iNCOME . .....covviniie i 30,103 32,801 23,643
Identifiable assets .. ..... ... ... i 123,882 126,960 131,863
Capital expenditures .. ............ ... ... .. ... ... 4,303 5,228 4,965
Depreciation and amortization.................... 5,533 5,805 5,798
Satellites and Related Space Systems:
Revenues ........ ... i i $331,726  $218,679  $232,387
Operating inCoOMe ... ......c.viirneinneennnnn... 21,439 14,555 5,754
Identifiable assets .......... ... ... 130,047 149,933 137,644
Capital expenditures . ........ ..., 8,236 2,786 7,356
Depreciation and amortization.................... 5,286 5,705 5,032
Transportation Management Systems:
Revenues ........ .. i $ 29,135 § 36,571 $ 65,469
Operating income (loss) ...................u... 1,243 (7,629) 242
Identifiable assets ............. ... . . ... 23,124 37,596 43,312
Capital expenditures . .......... ... ... 166 266 555
Depreciation and amortization.................... 732 787 804
Corporate and Other:
Revenues(l) ...t $ (8,213) $ (7,022) S (4,065)
Operating income (loss){(2) ..................... 2,538 (4,169) {600)
Identifiable assets ..........coiiiii 386,717 124,811 103,491
Capital expenditures .. ....... ... ... .. ... .. ... .. 1,635 1,298 2,465
Depreciation and amortization.................... 3,458 3,711 3,515
Consolidated:
Revenues ........ .. ... .. $675,935  $581,500  $551,642
Operating inCome .........c.couiiinernennennon. 55,323 35,558 29,039
Identifiable assets ........... .. ... .. . ... 663,770 439,300 416,310
Capital expenditures . .......... ... .. ... ... ... 14,340 9,578 15,341
Depreciation and amortization. . .................. 15,009 16,008 15,149

(1) Corporate and other revenues are comprised solely of the elimination of sales between
segments.

(2) Corporate and other operating income in 2004 included a $2.5 million gain in connection with
the sale of a note from a former affiliate and in 2003 included $4.8 million of settlement
charges (see Note 5).
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Export Sales and Major Customers

Orbital’s revenues by geographic area were as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
United States . . ..ttt et et et e $573,339  $469,997 $438,116
East Asia ... 102,596 111,503 63,347
Other ... o e —_ — 179
Total ... $675,935  $581,500  $551,642

Approximately 80%, 67% and 58% of the company’s revenues in 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, were generated under contracts with the U.S. government and its agencies or under
subcontracts with the U.S. government’s prime contractors. Customers that accounted for 10% or
more of consolidated revenue in 2004 and 2003 were The Boeing Company, the U. S. Department of
Defense and the U.S. National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA).

3. Balance Sheet Accounts

Restricted Cash

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the company had $8.3 million and $19.3 million, respectively, of
cash restricted primarily to collateralize letters of credit.

Inventory

Inventories consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2004 2003
Inventories . ... oot $16,554 $15,475
Allowance for inventory obsolescence ............................ (2,989)  (2,833)
Total L $13,565 $12,642

Substantially all of the company’s inventory consisted of component parts and raw materials.
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Receivables

The components of receivables were as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2004 2003
Billed . ... $ 54,800 § 55812
Unbilled . ... ... e 84,208 87,535
Retainages due upon contract completion....................... 10,649 6,348
Allowance for doubtful accounts .................. ... ........ (177) (187)

................................................... $149,480  $149,508

Approximately 90% of unbilled receivables and retainages at December 31, 2004 are due within
one year and will be billed on the basis of contract terms and delivery schedules. At December 31,
2004 and 2003, $11.0 million and $27.8 million, respectively, were receivables from non-U.S.
customers.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2004 2003
Land .. $ 4061 $ 4,061
Buildings and leasehold improvements ........................ 39,671 37,330
Furniture, fixtures and equipment ............................ 129,513 119,657
Software and other. ......... ... . .. . i i 18,013 14,633
Accumulated depreciation and amortization.................... (108,104)  (93,317)
Total .o $ 83,154 § 82364

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, was $15.0 million,
$16.0 million and $15.1 million, respectively.
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Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2004 2003
Contract related accruals . ...ttt $42,115  $34,896
Payroll, payroll taxes and fringe benefits.......................... 30,939 28,086
Interest .. e 3,844 4,544
Warranty obligations . ......... .. ... i 3,145 5,020
Other. . 10,671 18,639
Total . $90,714  $91,185

Warranties

The company assumes warranty obligations in connection with certain transportation management
systems contracts. The company records a liability for the expected costs to service estimated
warranty claims. During 2004 and 2003, activity in the warranty liability consisted of the following
(in thousands):

2004 2003
Balance at January 1 ......... ... it $ 5020 $ 4,554
Accruals during the year. ........ ... ... ... ... . 844 1,473
Reductions during the year............. . it (2,719)  (1,007)
Balance at December 31 .. .. ... . $ 3,145 $ 5,020

4. Debt Obligations

Long-term obligations, excluding capital lease obligations, consisted of the following (in
thousands):

December 31,

2004 2003
9% senior notes, interest due semi-annually, principal due in
July 200 L. .o $126,425  $135,000
Interest rate swap fair value hedge adjustment on $50 million of 9%
=] 1 T0) gl 0o 1 (- 1,844 1,847
128,269 136,847
Less current portion. .. .......uuiie e it — —
Long-term portion ... ... ...ttty $128,269  $136,847
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Partial Debt Extinguishment

During 2004, the company repurchased and cancelled $8.6 million of the company’s 9% senior
notes at a cost of $9.6 million.

Revolving Credit Facility

In December 2004, the company replaced its previous $50.0 million revolving line of credit with a
new five-year $50.0 million revolving credit facility (the “Revolver”) with Bank of America serving
as the lead arranger in the syndicated line of credit. The company has the option to increase the
amount of the Revolver by up to $25 million to the extent that any one or more lenders commits to
be a lender for such amount. Loans under the Revolver bear interest at LIBOR plus a margin
ranging from 1.5% to 2.25% or at a prime rate plus a margin ranging from zero to 0.75%, with the
applicable margin in each case varying according to the company’s ratio of total debt to earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. The Revolver is collateralized by the company’s
intellectual property and accounts receivable. Up to $40.0 million of the Revolver may be reserved
for letters of credit. As of December 31, 2004, there were no borrowings under the Revolver,
although $6.4 million of letters of credit were issued under the Revolver. Accordingly, as of
December 31, 2004, $43.6 million of the Revolver was available for borrowing.

In connection with this transaction, the company expended $0.4 million in debt issuance costs.
The company also recorded $1.0 million of debt extinguishment expenses in the accompanying
consolidated income statement comprised of accelerated amortization of previous debt issuance costs.

2003 Transactions

In July 2003, the company closed two financing transactions. In the first transaction, Orbital
issued $135.0 million of 9% senior notes due 2011 with interest payable semi-annually each
January 15 and July 15, starting in 2004. During the third quarter of 2003, the company used the net
proceeds from this offering, together with available cash on hand, to repurchase or redeem all of the
company’s $135.0 million 12% Second Priority Secured Notes due 2006. The fair value of the 9%
senior notes at December 31, 2004 was estimated at approximately $142.5 million, based on market
trading activity.

In the second transaction, the company replaced its previous $35.0 million revolving line of credit
with a $50.0 million revolving line of credit that was subsequently replaced in December 2004, as
described above. In connection with these two financing transactions, the company recorded
$38.8 million of debt extinguishment expenses in 2003, which was comprised of accelerated
amortization of unamortized debt discount of $20.7 million on our 12% notes, accelerated
amortization of debt issuance costs of $10.1 million and $8.0 million in prepayment premiums and
other expenses.

Debt Covenants

The existing senior notes and the Revolver contain covenants limiting the company’s ability to,
among other things, incur more debt, pay cash dividends, make investments, redeem or repurchase
Orbital stock, enter into transactions with affiliates, merge or consolidate with others and dispose of
assets or create liens on assets. In addition, the Revolver contains financial covenants with respect to
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leverage, secured leverage, fixed charge coverage, consolidated net worth and the ratio of accounts
receivable to senior secured indebtedness. As of December 31, 2004, the company was in compliance
with all of these covenants.

Interest Rate Swap

During 2003, the company entered into an eight-year interest rate swap agreement with a financial
institution on a notional amount of $50.0 million, whereby the company receives fixed-rate interest of
9% in exchange for variable interest payments. The interest rate is reset quarterly and is equal to the
3-month LIBOR rate plus 4.28%. The total variable interest rate was 6.35% at December 31, 2004.
This arrangement has been designated an effective fair value hedge of $50.0 million of the
company’s 9% senior notes due 2011. As of December 31, 2004, the fair value of the interest rate
swap was $1.8 million, which was recorded as a non-current asset with an equal increase in long-
term debt on the consolidated balance sheet.

5. Former Affiliate Transactions

In December 2003, the company’s former affiliate, Orbital Imaging Corporation
(“ORBIMAGE”), reorganized and Orbital’s equity ownership interest was cancelled. Orbital had
used the equity method of accounting for its investment in ORBIMAGE and through December 31,
2003, Orbital had recognized $40.6 million of losses in excess of its investment. In connection with
the cancellation of Orbital’s ownership interest, the company recorded a $40.6 million gain in
December 2003 to reverse the previously recorded losses in excess of its investment. Orbital does not
have any affiliation with ORBIMAGE’s successor company.

In 2003, Orbital recorded $4.8 million of settlement charges in connection with the settlement of
litigation and disputes between ORBIMAGE and Orbital. These charges included a $2.3 million
delay penalty related to the OrbView-3 satellite and a $2.5 million litigation settlement payment.

Orbital received $2.5 million of notes receivable from ORBIMAGE in connection with its
reorganization in December 2003. In January 2004, Orbital sold the notes to a third party financial
institution and recorded a $2.5 million gain as a credit to settlement expense.

6. Income Taxes

For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2003, and until the fourth quarter of 2004, Orbital
had recorded a valuation allowance to fully reserve its net deferred tax assets based on the
company’s assessment that the realization of the net deferred tax assets did not meet the “more
likely than not” criterion under SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” As of
December 31, 2004 the company determined that based upon a number of factors, including the
company’s cumulative taxable income in recent years and expected profitability in future years,
substantially all of its net deferred tax assets are “more likely than not” realizable through future
earnings. Accordingly, as of December 31, 2004 the company reversed $212.6 million of its deferred
income tax valuation allowance and recorded (i) a tax benefit of $156.5 million in the consolidated
income statement, (ii) a $39.7 million reduction in goodwill and (iii) a $16.4 million increase to
additional paid-in capital. The portion of the reversal recorded as a reduction in goodwill relates to
valuation allowances established in prior years in connection with business acquisitions. The portion
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of the reversal recorded as an increase to additional paid-in capital is primarily related to tax benefits
associated with stock option exercises in 2004 and prior years.

The company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities were (in thousands):

December 31,

2004 2003
Deferred Tax Assets:
U.S. Federal and state net operating loss carryforwards ........ $167,284 § 210,791
- Capitalized research and development costs.................. 34,607 —
Accruals and reserves . ... ... e 16,478 30,577
Tax credit carryforwards . ............. ... ... ... ... . 2,978 2,809
Intangible assets and other . ................... ... ... . ..., 1,977 2,049
Total deferred tax assets ... nnnn, 223,324 246,226
Valuation allowance . ...t (3,986)  (245,157)
Deferred tax assets, net . ... ...t 219,338 1,069
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Excess tax depreciation and other .......................... (6,688) (1,069)
Net deferred tax assets ..., $212,650 § —

Of the deferred net tax assets at December 31, 2004, $26.7 million are classified as current assets

in the consolidated balance sheet, consisting of $10.1 million in U.S. Federal and state net operating
loss carryforwards, $16.3 million in accruals and reserves and $0.3 million in intangible assets and
other. The remaining net deferred tax assets are classified as non-current assets in the consolidated

balance sheet.

The $155.9 million tax benefit recorded in 2004 was comprised of (i) the $156.5 million deferred
tax benefit in connection with the reversal of the valuation allowance discussed above and (ii) a
$0.6 million current provision for 2004 alternative minimum taxes and state tax obligations.

In 2003, the benefit for income taxes was solely attributable to the refund of state income taxes
paid in 2002. The provision for income taxes in 2002 consisted solely of the accrual of initially

estimated state income taxes.

The income tax provisions (benefits) from continuing operations were different from those
computed using the statutory U.S. Federal income tax rate as set forth below:

U.S. Federal statutory rate. ... ..
Investment in former affiliate ...
State taxes ....................
Other,net.................. ...

Changes in valuation allowance

Effective rate . ..............

........................... 350% 35.0% 35.0%

.......................... 41 (50) 40
.......................... 0.6 43 0.7

Years Ended
December 31,

2004 2003 2002

—  (102) —

(3929) 346 (37.8)
(353.2)% (1.3)% 1.9%




At December 31, 2004, the company had U.S. Federal net operating loss carryforwards (portions
of which expire beginning in 2005 through 2023) of approximately $437.5 million and U.S. research
and experimental tax credit carryforwards of approximately $2.5 million (portions of which expire
beginning in 2005 through 2008). Such net operating loss carryforwards and tax credits are subject
to certain limitations and other restrictions.

7. Commitments and Contingencies

Leases

Aggregate minimum commitments under non-cancelable operating leases, primarily for office
space and equipment rentals, at December 31, 2004 were as follows (in thousands):

200 e e $ 15,860
2006 e e e e 13,987
2007 L 13,161
2008 L e 12,730
2000 L e 12,118
Thereafter ... 61,774

$129,630

The company had a total of $0.3 million in capital lease obligations as of December 31, 2004,
consisting of a $0.2 million current portion due in 2005 and a $0.1 million long-term portion due
through 2007.

Rent expense for 2004, 2003 and 2002 was approximately $15.0 million, $14.4 million and
$16.1 million, respectively. The recorded amounts of capital lease obligations approximate their fair
values.

Litigation

The company is party to certain litigation or other legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course
of business. In the opinion of management, the outcome of such legal matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the company’s results of operations or financial condition.

U.S. Government Contracts

The accuracy and appropriateness of Orbital’s direct and indirect costs and expenses under its U.S.
government contracts, and, therefore, its receivables recorded pursuant to such contracts, are subject
to extensive regulation and audit by the Defense Contract Audit Agency or by other governmental
agencies. These agencies have the right to challenge Orbital’s direct and indirect costs charged to
U.S. government contracts. Additionally, portions of the payments to the company under such
contracts are provisional payments that are subject to potential adjustment upon audit by such
agencies.

Most of the company’s U.S. government contracts are funded incrementally on a year-to-year
basis. Changes in government policies, priorities or funding levels through agency or program budget
reductions by the U.S. Congress or executive agencies could materially adversely affect the
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company’s financial condition or results of operations. Furthermore, contracts with the U.S.
government may be terminated or suspended by the U.S. government at any time, with or without
cause. Such contract suspensions or terminations could result in unreimbursable expenses or charges
or otherwise adversely affect the company’s financial condition and/or results of operations.

8. Warrants, Common Stock and Stock Option Plans

During 2004, 2.4 million common stock warrants with a $4.82 exercise price that had originally
been issued in 2001 were exercised. The warrants expired on August 31, 2004. The company
received $11.4 million of proceeds from the warrant exercises during 2004. A total of 2.1 million
warrants expired unexercised.

In August 2002, the company issued 135,000 warrants to purchase approximately 16.5 million
shares of the company’s common stock as part of a sale of units consisting of notes and warrants.
Each warrant is exercisable for up to 122.23 shares of Orbital’s common stock at an exercise price of
$3.86 per share for a period of four years from the date of their issuance. As of December 31, 2004,
20,118 of these warrants had been exercised.

In October 1998, the company adopted a stockholder rights plan in which preferred stock
purchase rights were granted as a dividend at the rate of one right for each share of common stock
to stockholders of record on November 13, 1998. The plan is designed to deter coercive or unfair
takeover tactics. The rights become exercisable only if a person or group in the future becomes the
beneficial owner of 15% or more of Orbital’s common stock or announces a tender or exchange offer
that would result in its ownership of 15% or more of the company’s common stock. The rights are
generally redeemable by Orbital’s Board of Directors at a redemption price of $0.005 per right and
expire on October 31, 2008.

In 1999, the company adopted an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”’) for employees of the
company. The ESPP has quarterly offering periods and allows employees to purchase shares of stock
at the lesser of 85% of the fair market value of shares at the beginning or the end of the offering
period. During the three years ended December 31, 2004, employees purchased approximately
2.1 million shares of Orbital’s common stock under the ESPP.

As of December 31, 2004, the company’s 1997 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, as amended (the
“1997 Plan”), provided for awards of up to 10.6 million incentive or non-qualified stock options and
shares of restricted stock to employees, directors, consultants and advisors of the company and its
subsidiaries. Under the terms of the 1997 Plan, the option exercise price must be at least equal to
the fair market value of the company’s common stock on the date of grant. Options under the 1997
Plan vest at a rate set forth by the Board of Directors in each individual option agreement, generally
in one-third increments over a two- or three-year period following the date of grant. Options expire
no more than ten years following the grant date. The 1997 Plan provides for automatic grants of
non-qualified stock options to non-employee directors of the company. The company also has options
outstanding that were issued pursuant to two predecessor plans to the 1997 Plan.

In the fourth quarter of 2002, the company offered a stock option exchange program to certain
employees, pursuant to which 1,185,513 options previously granted under the 1997 Plan, each with
an exercise price greater than $12.25 per common share, were cancelled. The company granted
870,928 new options in 2003 under the 1997 Plan, more than six months after the cancellation of the
prior options.
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The following two tables summarize information regarding the company’s stock options for the last
three years:

Weighted
Average Outstanding
Number of Option Price  Exercise and
Options Shares Per Share Price Exercisable
Outstanding at December 31, 2001 ...... 8,116,380  $1.30-$43.31 $14.03 4,753,881
Granted .......... ... ... .. ... ... 607,500 2.95-6.15 5.31
Exercised.......................... (174,783) 3.80-4.43 4.00
Cancelled or expired ................ (2,425,370) 3.45-43.31 21.58
Outstanding at December 31, 2002 ... ... 6,123,727 1.30-43.31 10.53 4,397,349
Granted . ............. ... i 2,492,428 4.33-8.95 6.38
Exercised.......................... (639,323) 3.45-5.79 3.85
Cancelled or expired ................ (637,095) 3.45-43.31 18.31
Outstanding at December 31, 2003 .. .. .. 7,339,737 1.30-43.31 9.01 4,854,429
Granted ............ ... .. ... ... .... 1,154,500 9.77-12.62 12.09
Exercised.......................... (1,167,478) 1.30-12.25 4.54
Cancelled or expired ................ (284,222) 3.45-36.50 20.18
Outstanding at December 31, 2004 . ... .. 7,042,537  $1.30-$43.31 $ 9.80 4,924,708
Options Outstanding
Weighted Options Exercisable
Number Average Weighted Number Weighted
Range of Outstanding Remaining Average Exercisable Average
Exercise Prices at Dec. 31, 2004 Contractual Life Exercise Price at Dec. 31, 2004 Exercise Price
$ 1.30-$5.79 2,671,475 7.38 $ 473 2,123,220 $ 4.51
6.15-12.18 2,384,098 7.01 9.46 999,522 9.84
12.25-43.31 1,986,964 3.95 17.03 1,801,966 17.51
$ 1.30-$43.31 7,042,537 ﬁ $ 9.80 4,924,708 $10.35

9. Supplemental Disclosures
Defined Contribution Plan

At December 31, 2004, the company had a defined contribution plan (the “Plan”) generally
covering all full-time employees. Company contributions to the Plan are made based on certain plan
provisions and at the discretion of the Board of Directors and were $8.1 million, $6.8 million and
$4.9 million during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The company’s 2004 contributions were made
solely in the form of cash. The company’s 2003 contributions consisted of $1.2 million in cash and
0.8 million shares of Orbital common stock, which employees are permitted to exchange into other
investment alternatives. The company’s 2002 contributions consisted of 1.1 million shares of Orbital
common stock.
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The company has a deferred compensation plan for senior managers and executive officers. At
December 31, 2004 and 2003, liabilities related to this plan totaling $4.9 million and $4.4 million,

respectively, were included in accrued expenses.

Cash Flow

Cash payments for interest and income taxes were as follows (in thousands):

Interestpaid. . ....... .. .. ..

Income taxes paid (refunds received)

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
$11,224  $15,781  $12,268
529 (265) 265

10. Summary of Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of selected quarterly financial data for the previous two years (in

thousands, except share data).

2004(1)
Revenues..........................
Grossprofit . ........ ... .. .........
Income from operations. .............
Netincome ........................
Basic income per share ..............
Diluted income per share ............

2003(2)
Revenues..........................
Grossprofit.......... .. ... .........
Income from operations..............
Net income (loss) ..................
Basic income (loss) per share ........
Diluted income (loss) per share.......

Quarters Ended

March 31  June 30  Sept. 30  Dec. 31
$151,372  $177,683  $171,695  $175,185
24918 29,651 29,237 25,342
14,205 14,509 14,323 12,286
11,494 11,053 11,395 166,058
0.24 0.23 0.23 3.22
0.18 0.17 0.18 2.58
$136,681  $158,400 $128,629  $157,790
26,234 21,494 26,893 29,606
9,387 1,451 11,224 13,496
3,436 (4,626)  (30,225) 51,652
0.08 (0.10) (0.64) 1.09
0.07 (0.10) (0.64) 0.82

(1) Operating income included a $2.5 million gain recorded as a credit to net settlement expenses in the first
quarter of 2004 related to the company’s sale of senior subordinated notes which the company had
received in 2003 from ORBIMAGE. Net income included a $156.5 million income tax benefit in the
fourth quarter of 2004 related to a deferred tax valuation allowance reversal.

(2) During 2003, operating income included net settlement expenses related to the company’s settlement with
ORBIMAGE in the amounts of $1.0 million in the first quarter, $3.5 million in the second quarter and
$0.3 million in the fourth quarter. In the third quarter of 2003, the company recorded a $0.9 million
reduction of settlement expense related to certain insurance proceeds.

In the third quarter of 2003, net loss included a $38.8 million debt extinguishment charge. In the fourth
quarter of 2003, net income included a $40.6 million gain on reversal of allocated losses of affiliate.
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ORBITAL SCIENCES CORPORATION

SCHEDULE II — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
FORM 10-K FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004, 2003 AND 2002
(In thousands)

Description

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
Allowance for doubtful accounts . ...
Allowance for obsolete inventory . ...
Deferred income tax valuation reserve

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
Allowance for doubtful accounts .. ..
Allowance for obsolete inventory .. ..
Deferred income tax valuation reserve

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
Allowance for doubtful accounts . ...
Allowance for obsolete inventory .. ..
Deferred income tax valuation reserve

Additions
Charged/

Balance at Charged to Credited to Balance
Start of Costs and Other At End of

Period  Expenses Accounts Deductions Period

..... $ 2,032  $1,641 — $ (1,587) § 2,086
..... 1,390 2,196 — (353) 3,233
..... 202,734 — 29,510 — 232,244
..... 2,086 66 — (1,965) 187
..... 3,233 406 — (806) 2,833
..... 232,244 — 12,913 — 245,157
..... 187 — — (10) 177
..... 2,833 156 — — 2,989
..... 245,157 — — (241,171) 3,986
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures and Changes in
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

An evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of the end of the period covered by this
report. Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded
that these disclosure controls and procedures were effective. There has been no change in our
internal control over financial reporting during our most recent fiscal quarter that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities and Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended. Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over
financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework, our
management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of
December 31, 2004. Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the company’s internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 has been audited by Pricewaterhouse-
Coopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is
included herein.
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this Item is included under the captions “Executive Officers of the
Registrant” in Part I above and under the captions “Proposal 1 — Election of Directors — Directors
to be Elected at the 2005 Meeting, — Directors Whose Terms Expire in 2006, — Directors Whose
Terms Expire in 2007,” “Corporate Governance — Code of Business Conduct and Ethics,”
“Information Concerning the Board and Its Committees — Our Committees” and “Other Matters —
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” of our definitive proxy statement to be
filed pursuant to Regulation 14A on or about March 22, 2005 and is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item is included under the captions “Executive Compensation —
Summary Compensation Table, — Option Grants in Last Fiscal Year, — Aggregated Option
Exercises During 2004 and December 31, 2004 Option Values, — Indemnification Agreements, —
Executive Employment Agreements, — Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider
Participation™ and “Information Concerning the Board and Its Committees — Director
Compensation” of our definitive proxy statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A on or about
March 22, 2005 and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The information required by this Item is included under the captions “Ownership of Common
Stock” and “Proposal 2 — Approval of the Orbital Sciences Corporation 2005 Stock Incentive
Plan — Equity Compensation Plan Information™ of our definitive proxy statement to be filed
pursuant to Regulation 14A on or about March 22, 2005 and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

None.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item is included under the caption “Other Matters — Fees of
Independent Auditors, — Pre-Approval of Audit and Non-Audit Services” of our definitive proxy
statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A on or about March 22, 2005 and is incorporated
herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Documents filed as part of this Report:

1. Financial Statements. The following financial statements, together with the report of
independent registered public accounting firm, are filed as a part of this report:

A. Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Income Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheets

. Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Mg 0w

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Schedule.

The following additional financial data are transmitted with this report and should be
read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements contained herein. Schedules
other than those listed below have been omitted because they are inapplicable or are not
required.

Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

3. Exhibits. A complete listing of exhibits required is given in the Exhibit Index that
precedes the exhibits filed with this report.

(b) See Item 15(a)(3) of this report.
(c) See Item 15(a)(2) of this report.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly

authorized.

Dated: March 4, 2005

ORBITAL SCIENCES CORPORATION

By:/s/ David W. Thompson

-.David W. Thompson
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date

indicated.

Dated: March 4, 2005

Signature:

/s/ _David W. Thompson

David W. Thompson

/s!  James R. Thompson

James R. Thompson

/s!/  Garrett E. Pierce

Garrett E. Pierce

/s/ N. Paul Brost

N. Paul Brost

/s/ Hollis M. Thompson

Hollis M. Thompson

/s/  Edward F. Crawley

Edward F. Crawley

/s/ Daniel J. Fink

Daniel J. Fink

/s!/ Lennard A. Fisk

Lennard A. Fisk

/s/ Robert M. Hanisee

Robert M. Hanisee

Title:

Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer, Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Vice Chairman, President and Chief
Operating Officer, Director

Vice Chairman and Chief
Financial Officer, Director
(Principal Financial Officer)

Senior Vice President, Finance
Vice President and Controller

(Principal Accounting Officer)
Director

Director

Director

Director
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/s/ Robert J. Hermann

Robert J. Hermann

/s/ Janice I. Obuchowski

Janice 1. Obuchowski

/s!/  Frank L. Salizzoni

Frank L. Salizzoni

/s! Harrison H. Schmitt

Harrison H. Schmitt

/s/ Scott L. Webster

Scott L. Webster

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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EXHIBIT INDEX

The following exhibits are filed as part of this report. Where such filing is made by incorporation
by reference to a previously filed statement or report, such statement or report is identified in
parentheses.

Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibit

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
company’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File Number 333-08769) filed and effective
on July 25, 1996).

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004).

3.3 Certificate of Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporation, dated April 29, 1997
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998).

3.4 Certificate of Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporation, dated April 30, 2003
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to the company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended June 30, 2003).

3.5 Certificate of Designation, Preferences and Rights of Series B Junior Participating Preferred
Stock, dated November 2, 1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2 to the company’s
Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed on November 2, 1998).

4.1 Form of Certificate of Common Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File Number 33-33453) filed on February 9,
1990 and effective on April 24, 1990).

4.2 Indenture, dated as of July 10, 2003, by and between Orbital Sciences Corporation and U.S.
Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 18, 2003).

4.3 Form of 9% Senior Note due 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the
company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 18, 2003).

4.4 Warrant Agreement, dated as of August 22, 2002, by and between Orbital Sciences
Corporation and U.S. Bank, N.A., as Warrant Agent (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 to the company’s Current Report on Form §-K filed on August 27, 2002).

4.5 Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant for Warrants Expiring August 15, 2006
(restricted) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on August 27, 2002).

4.6 Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant for Warrants Expiring August 15, 2006
(registered) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003).

4.8 Rights Agreement dated as of October 22, 1998, between Orbital Sciences Corporation and
BankBoston N.A., as Rights Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1 to the company’s
Report on Form 8-A filed on November 2, 1998).

4.9 Form of Rights Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 to the company’s Report
on Form 8-A filed on November 2, 1998).

10.1 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of December 29, 2004, by and among
Orbital Sciences Corporation, Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent, Wachovia
Bank, National Association, as documentation agent, and the other parties thereto
(transmitted herewith).
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Exhibit
Number

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

Description of Exhibit

Amended and Restated Security Agreement dated as of December 29, 2004, by and between
Orbital Sciences Corporation, Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent (transmitted
herewith).

Lease Agreement by and between Boston Properties Limited Partnership and Orbital
Sciences Corporation dated May 18, 1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001).

Lease Agreement by and between Boston Properties Limited Partnership and Orbital
Sciences Corporation dated April 5, 1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the
company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001).

Lease Agreement by and between Boston Properties Limited Partnership and Orbital
Sciences Corporation dated December 1, 1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to
the company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001).

Office Lease, dated July 17, 1992, between S.C. Realty, Inc. and Orbital Sciences
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1992).

Sale/Leaseback Agreement, dated September 29, 1989, by and among Corporate Property
Associates 8, L.P., Corporate Property Associates 9, L.P. and Space Data Corporation
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the company’s Registration Statement on Form
S-1 (File Number 33-33453) filed on February 9, 1990).

First Amendment to Sale/Leaseback Agreement, dated as of December 27, 1990, by and
among Corporate Property Associates 8, L.P., Corporate Property Associates 9, L.P. and
Space Data Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.1 to the company’s annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1991).

Orbital Sciences Corporation 1990 Stock Option Plan, restated as of April 27, 1995
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5.1 to the company’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1995).*

Orbital Sciences Corporation 1990 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors, restated
as of April 27, 1995 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5.2 to the company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1995).*

Amended and Restated Orbital Sciences Corporation 1997 Stock Option and Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998).

Orbital Sciences Corporation 2003 Nonqualified Management Deferred Compensation Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003).*

Executive Relocation Agreement between Orbital Sciences Corporation and Ronald J. Grabe,
Executive Vice President and General Manager/Launch Systems Group dated August 7,
2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the company’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003).*

Executive Employment Agreement dated as of August 9, 2000, by and between Orbital
Sciences Corporation and Garrett E. Pierce (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000).*

Executive Employment and Change of Control Agreement dated as of August 9, 2000, by
and between Orbital Sciences Corporation and Garrett E. Pierce (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.4 to the company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2000).*
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Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibit

10.16 Supplemental Employment Agreement between Garrett E. Pierce and Orbital Sciences
Corporation dated July 19, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2002).*

10.17 Form of Director and Executive Officer Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.23 to the company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1998).*

10.18 Form of Executive Employment Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
the company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003).*

10.21 Purchase Contract dated as of March 27, 2002, by and between Orbital Sciences Corporation
and The Boeing Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2003) .**

10.22 Amendment, dated as of January 13, 2005, to Purchase Contract by and between Orbital
Sciences Corporation and The Boeing Company (transmitted herewith).

10.23 Form of Executive Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement under the 1997 Stock Option and
Incentive Plan (transmitted herewith).*

10.24 Form of Non-Employee Director Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement under the 1997
Stock Option and Incentive Plan (transmitted herewith).*

10.25 Form of Director Restricted Stock Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30,
4) *

10.26 Non-Employee Director Compensation Program (transmitted herewith).*
12 Statement re Computation of Earnings to Fixed Charges (transmitted herewith).
23 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLLP (transmitted herewith).

31.1 Certification of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Sec. 1350) (transmitted herewith).

31.2 Certification of Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Sec. 1350) (transmitted herewith).

32.1  Written Statement of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350) (transmitted herewith).

32.2  Written Statement of Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350) (transmitted herewith).

* Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement.

** Certain portions of this Exhibit were omitted by means of redacting a portion of the text in
accordance with Rule 0-6 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Orbital Sciences Corporation
21839 Atlantic Boulevard
Dulles, VA 20166
703-406-5000

Public/Investor Relations
Barron S, Beneski

Vice President, Corporate
Communications
703-406-5528
public.relations@orbital.com
investorrelations@orbital.com

Internet

Orbital maintains a corporate
home page on the Internet at
www.orbital.com

Common Stock
Stock symbol: ORB
Listed: New York Stock Exchange

Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
McLean, VA

Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of
stockholders will be held at the
company’s headquarters on
April 28,2005 at 9:00 am.

Transfer Agent

Stockholders may obtain
information with respect to share
position, transfer requirements
and lost certificates by

writing or telephoning:

Equiserve Trust Company, N.A.
PO. Box 43010

Providence, Rl 02$40-3010
Tel: 781-575-3170 or
800-730-4001

www.equiserve.com

Employment
Orbital Sciences Corporation is
an equal opportunity employer:

Disclosure of Non-GAAP Financial Measures

The non-GAAP (Generally Accepted Accounting Principles) financial measures described below are used by the company within
this Annual Report. Orbital does not intend for the information to be considered in isolation or as a substitute for the related
GAAP measures. Other companies may define these measures differently. The tables reconcile the non-GAAP measure to the
most directly comparable GAAP financial measure.

Free cash flow is defined as GAAP net cash provided by operating activities less capital expenditures for property, plant and
equipment, Management belfieves that free cash flow provides investors with an important perspective on the company's liquidity,
financial flexibility and ability to fund operations and service debt.

Full Year
($ millions) 2004 2003
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities ~ § 670 $ 465
Capital Expenditures (14.3) (9.6)
Free Cash Flow ' 527 36.9

Adjusted net income is defined as GAAP net income excluding (i) debt extinguishment expenses, (i) gain on reversal of allocated
losses of affiliate, and (jif) the income tax benefit related to reversal of deferred tax asset valuation allowance. Adjusted diluted
earnings per share is equal to adjusted net income divided by diltted shares, Management believes these measures provide
investors with a more complete understanding of the company's operational performance during these periods without regard to
debt extinguishment expenses, gain on reversal of allocated losses of affiliate and the income tax benefit.

Full Year
($ millions, except share data) 2004 2003
Reported Net Income $ 200.0 $ 202
Add Debt Extinguishment Expense 2.1 38.8
Subtract Gain on Reversal of Allocated
Losses of Affiliate - (40.6)
Subtract Benefit from Reversal of Deferred
Tax Asset Valuation Allowance (156.5) -~
Adjusted Net income $ 456 $ 184
Adjusted Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 070 $ 032
Diluted Shares 650 58.2

Certifications

Orbital filed the Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ") and Chief Financial Officer certifications required by Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 as exhibits to Orbital's Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, Orbital
submitted the required 2004 annual CEO certification to the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") in accordance with Section
303A.12 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual.

“Safe Harbor” Statement

Some of the statements in this report constitute “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995, All statements other than those of historical facts included herein, including those related to the
company's financial outlook, goals, business strategy, projected plans and objectives of management for future operations, new order
trends and liquidity are forward-looking statements. Such forward-locking statements involve unknown risks and uncertainties

that may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of the company to be materially different from any future results,
performance or achievements, expressed or implied by such forward-tooking statements. Factors such as general economic and
business conditions, continued government support and funding for key space and defense programs, the financial condition of
major customers, product performance, market acceptance of products, services and technologies, availability of required capital,
and dependence upon long-term contracts with government and commerxial customers may impact the company's actual financial
and operational results. These factors and others related to the company's business are described in further detail in the company's
SEC filings, including its Form 10-K. Orbital assumes no obligation to update any such forward-locking information.

Photo Credits
Pages 2 {left) and 12 courtesy of The Boeing Company, page 6 (bottom) and page 10 {top) courtesy of the US. Navy, back cover
courtesy of NASA-|PL /Caltech
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